
Simon Young, Solicitor
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Thursday 5 October 2017 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall

PART ONE (OPEN TO THE PRESS AND PUBLIC)

The Agenda items below that attract public speakers will be taken first – the resulting 
order of the Agenda will be disclosed by the Chairman at the start of the meeting.

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Planning Committee meeting, on 
the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Councillor Humphrey Reynolds (Chairman)
Councillor David Reeve (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Michael Arthur
Councillor John Beckett
Councillor Lucie Dallen
Councillor Neil Dallen
Councillor Jan Mason

Councillor Tina Mountain
Councillor Peter O'Donovan
Councillor Martin Olney
Councillor Vince Romagnuolo
Councillor Clive Smitheram
Councillor David Wood

Yours sincerely

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

For further information, please contact Sandra Dessent, tel:  01372 732121 or email:  
sdessent@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 24)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Planning Committee held on the 7 September 2017 (attached) and 
authorise the Chairman to sign them.

3. PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00547/REM - ASHLEY HOUSE, ASHLEY 
ROAD, EPSOM KT18 5AZF  (Pages 25 - 34)

Variation of Condition 3 (Plans) of 15/01532/FUL (Conversion and extension of 
existing office building to provide 8 x two bedroom and 4 x one bedroom 
residential flats together with revised parking layout and external amenity space 
to amend northern side (as amended).

4. PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00548/LBA - ASHLEY HOUSE, ASHLEY 
ROAD, EPSOM,  KT18 5AZF  (Pages 35 - 44)

Listed building consent for amendments to northern side annexe previously 
approved under 15/01533/LBA (Conversion and extension of existing office 
building with additional floor of accommodation above southern wing and 
erection of new single storey extension on northern elevation to provide 8 x two 
bedroom and 4 x one bedroom residential flats together with revised parking 
layout and external amenity space) (as amended)

5. PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01900/CAT - 9 LYNWOOD ROAD, EPSOM 
KT17 4LF  (Pages 45 - 62)

Objection to the implementation of a Tree Preservation Order on a group of 5 
limes at 9 Lynwood Close, Epsom – Tree Preservation order number 456

6. PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00429/FUL - NEW DEVELOPMENT ON 
NESCOT AGRICULTURAL LAND, REIGATE ROAD, KT17 3DS  (Pages 63 - 
90)

Construction of 88 residential dwellings with associated access, open space, 
car parking, landscaping and other works (as amended)

7. SITE VISITS  (Pages 91 - 92)

Members are asked to put forward any applications which it is considered 
warrant a site visit.



19

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 7 September 2017

PRESENT -

Councillor Humphrey Reynolds (Chairman);Councillor David Reeve (Vice-Chairman); 
Councillors Michael Arthur, John Beckett, Lucie Dallen, Neil Dallen, Jan Mason, 
Tina Mountain, Peter O'Donovan, Martin Olney, Vince Romagnuolo, Clive Smitheram 
and David Wood

Officers present: Mark Berry (Head of Place Development), Simon Young (Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services), Adele Castle (Planning Development Manager), John 
Robinson (Planning Officer) and Sandra Dessent (Democratic Services Officer)

16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In the interests of openness and transparency the following declaration was 
made:

Planning Application 17/00256/FUL - 5 Alexandra Road, Epsom KT17 4BH
Councillor Michael Arthur MBE FCIOB FCMI, Other Interest: Acquainted with 
consultants associated with the application.

17 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 20 July 2017 were agreed 
as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

18 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/0034/FUL - 55 CHRIST CHURCH MOUNT, 
EPSOM KT19 8LZ 

Description

Demolition of existing detached dwelling house and construction of a new 
detached dwelling house.

Decision

Planning permission is REFUSED for the following reasons:

(1) The proposal due to a combination of its eaves height, proximity to 
the flank boundaries, depth in relation to its neighbours and the 
disposition of the proposed windows would have an adverse impact 
on the street scene and on the amenities of the neighbouring 
properties.  It would therefore be contrary to policies CS1 and CS5 of 

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 20

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

the Core Strategy 2015 and policies DM9 and DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

The Committee noted verbal representations from an objector and a supporter of 
the application and the applicant.  Letters of representation had been published 
on the Council’s website and were available to the public and members of the 
Committee in advance of the meeting

19 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00256/FUL - 5 ALEXANDRA ROAD, EPSOM 
KT17 4BH 

Description

Demolition of the existing building and redevelopment of the site to provide 8 
two-bedroom and 2 three-bedroom flats in a three/four storey building with 
accommodation in a lower ground, ground, first and second floor arrangement, 
formation of a new vehicular access from Alexandra Road and the provision of 
11 parking spaces.  (Amended drawings received 16.08.2017).

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of 
the external materials to be used for the development shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 
of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(3) No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and 
soft landscape proposals, including details of the foundation design 
and construction methods, as well as a schedule of landscape 
maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years, have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
landscaping shall incorporate the planting of native species of trees 
and shrubs. The approved landscape scheme (with the exception of 
planting, seeding and turfing) shall be implemented prior to the 

Page 4

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 21

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter 
retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of 
an appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual 
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core 
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(4) The development hereby approved shall not be commenced unless 
and until the proposed vehicular access to Alexandra Road has been 
constructed and provided with visibility zones in accordance with 
the approved plans and thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept 
permanently clear of any obstruction measured from 0.6m above the 
road surface.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(5) A pedestrian inter-visibility splay of 2m by 2m shall be provided on 
each side of the access, the depth measured from the back of the 
footway and the widths outwards from the edges of the access. No 
fence, wall or other obstruction to visibility between 0.6m and 2m in 
height above ground level shall be erected within the area of such 
splays.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(6) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 
and until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with 
the approved plans for 11 vehicles / 10 cycles to be parked and for 
vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward 
gear. Thereafter the parking / turning areas shall be retained and 
maintained for their designated purposes.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(7) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport 
Management Plan, to include details of :

a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

c) storage of plant and materials

Page 5

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 22

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)

e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones

f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation

g) vehicle routing

h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and 
a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused

j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the 
hours of 8.00 and 9.00 am and 5.00 and 6.00 p.m. nor shall the 
contractor permit any HGVs associated with the development at the 
site to be laid up, waiting, in Upper High Street, Church Road, Mill 
Road, Bridge Road during these times

k) on-site turning for construction vehicles

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(8) All new photovoltaic panels or tiles shall be fitted flush with the 
adjoining roof surface and shall not project beyond the plane of the 
roof.

Reason:  To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure 
a satisfactory appearance to the buildings in accordance with policy 
DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 
2015

(9) The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until 
they have achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 
110 litres per person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes 
efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(10) Prior to the commencement of any development works, including 
ground preparation and demolition, the tree protection measures as 
set out in the Tree Protection Plan dated 1 September 2016 produced 
by Harper Tree Consulting  shall be implemented/erected and shall 
remain in place for the duration of the construction works.  The 

Page 6

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 23

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

protection barriers shall only be removed on the completion of all 
construction activity and with the written agreement of the local 
planning authority.  All works shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the 
interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007 and Policies DM5 and DM9 of 
the Development Management Policies Document 2015

(11) Prior to the commencement of the development details of 
sustainability measures shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. These details shall 
demonstrate how the development would be efficient in the use of 
energy, water and materials including means of providing the energy 
requirements of the development from renewable technologies. The 
development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved details prior to the first occupation of the building, shall be 
maintained as such thereafter and no change shall take place 
without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development 
sustainable and efficient in the use of energy, water and materials 
are included in the development in accordance with Policy CS6 of 
the Core Strategy (2007).

(12) The first and second floor windows serving the stairwell/landings in 
the eastern flank elevation of the development hereby permitted 
shall be glazed with obscure glass of no less than obscurity level 3, 
and shall thereafter be permanently retained as such.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupants of adjoining 
properties in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies Document 2015

(13) Prior to the commencement of development, a 1:20 scale vertical 
section through the front, rear  and flank elevations  including 
details of windows (including head, sill and window reveal details), 
balcony balustrade, position of rainwater goods,  as well as a 1:50 
scale front  elevation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the character and appearance of the 
conservation and wider area in accordance with  Policy CS5 of the 
Core Strategy 2007 and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies Document 2015

(14) Prior to construction of the development hereby approved, plans 
and information relating to the following:

Page 7

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 24

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

 A drainage layout detailing the exact location of SUDs elements, 
pipes. Impervious areas and drainage sub-catchments (if applicable)

 Details of all SUDs elements and other drainage features, including 
long and cross sections, pipe diameters and respective levels

shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. 
The development will proceed only in complete accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason: To ensure the design fully meets the national SuDS 
technical standards.

(15) Before the commencement of the construction of the development 
hereby approved, details of how the Sustainable Drainage System 
will be protected and maintained during the construction of the 
development shall be submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out 
in strict accordance with those approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the construction works do not compromise 
the functioning of the agreed Sustainable Drainage System.

(16) Prior to occupation, a verification report carried out by a qualified 
drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority to demonstrate that the Sustainable Drainage 
System has been constructed as per the agreed scheme.

Reason: To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System has been 
constructed as agreed.

(17) Prior to construction of the development hereby approved, details of 
the proposed maintenance regimes for each of the SuDS elements 
must be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure the drainage system is maintained throughout its 
life time to an acceptable standard.

(18) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:

15-176-P-009D; 15-176-P-003D; 15-176-P-001D; 15-176-P-002; 

15-176-P-004; 15-176-P-005; 15-176-P-011C

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to 
comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).  

Page 8

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 25

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

(2) The water efficiency standard required under condition 9 has been 
adopted by the local planning authority through the Development 
Management Policies 2015.  This standard is the ‘optional 
requirement’ detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved 
Document (AD) Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A 
paragraph A1.  

The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through 
either:

a) using the ‘fittings approach’ where water fittings are installed as per 
the table at 2.1 in the AD or 

b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the 
AD Part G Appendix A.

(3) This form of development is considered liable for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new 
developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or 
more of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new 
dwelling, even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a 
standardised, non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per 
square metre, and are charged on the net additional floorspace 
generated by a development. 

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course. 

More information and the charging schedule are available online:

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-
AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published

(4) No  construction work shall be carried out in such a manner as to be 
audible at the site boundary before 07:30 hours or after 18:30 hours 
Monday to Friday; no construction work shall be audible at the site 
boundary before 08:00 or after 13:00 hours on Saturdays and no 
construction work of any nature shall be carried out on Sundays or 
Bank/Public Holidays.

Note:  It was noted that the landscaping proposal, as detailed in condition 3 
should include adequate vertical planting at the front of the building. 

Page 9

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 26

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

20 PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01448/FUL - 2 CHASE ROAD, EPSOM KT19 8TL 

Description

Part two-storey/part single-storey flank extension to accommodate two affordable 
flat units (1, one bedroom flat to east of existing building and 1, three bedroom 
flat). Demolition of garage to rear, with associated parking and landscaping.  
(Amended drawings received 25.07.2017).

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Part A

1.1 Subject to a legal agreement being completed and signed to secure 
the following heads of terms:

a) A commuted sum of £79,892.00

b) The provision of 1 one-bedroom and 1 three-bedroom affordable 
rental units. 

c) An affordable housing deposit of £346,198

1.2 The Committee authorise the Head of Place Development to grant 
planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed entirely of 
the materials as detailed on the schedule of materials on the 
planning application form 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 
of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(3) No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and 
soft landscape proposals, including a schedule of landscape 
maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years, have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
approved landscape scheme (with the exception of planting, seeding 

Page 10

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 27

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

and turfing) shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the 
development hereby approved and thereafter retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of 
an appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual 
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core 
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(4) Prior to the commencement of the development details of 
sustainability measures shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. These details shall 
demonstrate how the development would be efficient in the use of 
energy, water and materials including means of providing the energy 
requirements of the development from renewable technologies. The 
development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved details prior to the first occupation of the building, shall be 
maintained as such thereafter and no change shall take place 
without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development 
sustainable and efficient in the use of energy, water and materials 
are included in the development in accordance with Policy CS6 of 
the Core Strategy (2007).

(5) The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until 
they have achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 
110 litres per person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes 
efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) No development shall take place until details and location of the 
installation of bat and bird boxes to enhance the biodiversity interest 
of the site have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented in full prior to 
the occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter 
maintained.

Reason: To enhance biodiversity and nature habitats in accordance 
with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM4 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(7) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 
and until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with 
the approved plans for 3 vehicles to be parked. Thereafter the 
parking area shall be retained and maintained for their designated 
purpose.

Page 11

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 28

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(8) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 
and until the proposed widened vehicular access to Hook Road has 
been constructed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(9) A pedestrian inter-visibility splay of 2m by 2m shall be provided on 
each side of the access, the depth measured from the back of the 
footway and the widths outwards from the edges of the access. No 
fence, wall or other obstruction to visibility between 0.6m and 2m in 
height above ground level shall be erected within the area of such 
splays.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(10) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport 
Management Plan, to include details of:

a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

c) storage of plant and materials

d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)

e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones

f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation

g) vehicle routing

h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and 

a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused

j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the
hours of 8.30 and 9.15 am nor shall the contractor permit any HGVs
associated with the development at the site to be laid up and waiting, 
in Chase Road, Hook Road or other nearby residential roads during 
these times.

Page 12

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 29

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(11) No development shall take place until details of the design, external 
appearance and decorative finish of all fences, gates, walls, refuse 
store and any other means of enclosure have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to 
the development first being occupied and shall thereafter be 
retained.

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 
of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(12) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following plans:

1761-08G; 1761-09C; 1761-10B; 1761-11C; 1761-12C   

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning as required by Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012

(2) The property is situated close to a former saw mill.  In the event that 
contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, works should be suspended and it must be reported in 
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority.  In that event, 
an investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and 
remediation carried out as is necessary, subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority.

(3) No burning of materials obtained by site clearance shall be carried 
out on the application site.

(4) The water efficiency standard required under condition 5 has been 
adopted by the local planning authority through the Development 
Management Policies 2015.  This standard is the ‘optional 
requirement’ detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved 

Page 13

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 30

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Document (AD) Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A 
paragraph A1.  

The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through 
either:

a) using the ‘fittings approach’ where water fittings are installed as per 
the table at 2.1 in the AD or 

b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the 
AD Part G Appendix A.

(5) This form of development is considered liable for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new 
developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or 
more of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new 
dwelling, even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a 
standardised, non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per 
square metre, and are charged on the net additional floorspace 
generated by a development. 

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course. 

More information and the charging schedule are available online

 http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-
AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published

(6) Works related to the construction of the development hereby 
permitted, including works of demolition or preparation prior to 
building operations shall not take place other than between the 
hours of 08.00 to 18.00 hours Mondays to Fridays; 08.00 to 13.00 
hours Saturdays; with no work on Saturday afternoons (after 13.00 
hours), Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays

Part B

1.3 In the event that the section 106 Agreement referred to in Part A is 
not completed by 16 October 2017, the Head of Place Development 
be authorised to refuse the application for the following reason:

1.4 In the absence of a completed legal obligation under section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the 
applicant has failed to comply with CS9 (Affordable Housing) and 
CS12 (Developer Contribution) of the 2007 Core Strategy in relation 
to the provision of affordable housing units, and a commuted sum in 
lieu of the on-site provision of affordable housing units.

Page 14

AGENDA ITEM 2

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published


Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 31

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

21 PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01145/FUL - BIRCHCROFT AND HOLLYDENE, 
COURT LANE, EPSOM KT19 8JP 

Description

Demolition of two vacant dwellings, one garage and one annexe, and the 
construction of a new 3 storey flatted development comprising of 13 flats (3 one 
bedroom flats, 6 two bedroom flats and 4 three bedroom flats) and associated 
parking and landscaping works.  (Amended drawings received 18.04.2017).

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

Part A

1.1 Subject to a legal agreement being completed and signed to secure 
the following heads of terms:

a) A commuted sum of £79,892.00

b) The off-site provision of 1 one-bedroom and 1 three-bedroom 
affordable rental units.

c) An affordable housing deposit of £346,198 

1.2 The Committee authorise the Head of Place Development to grant 
planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of 
the external materials to be used for the development shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 
of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Page 15

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 32

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

(3) No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and 
soft landscape proposals, including a schedule of landscape 
maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years, have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
landscaping shall incorporate the planting of native species of trees 
and shrubs. The approved landscape scheme (with the exception of 
planting, seeding and turfing) shall be implemented prior to the 
occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter 
retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of 
an appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual 
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core 
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(4) No new development shall be occupied until space has been laid out 
within the site in accordance with the approved plans for a maximum 
of 17 cars and a minimum of 18 cycles to be parked, and for vehicles 
to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear.  The 
parking/turning area shall be used and retained exclusively for its 
designated purpose.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(5) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport 
Management Plan, to include details of:

a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

c) storage of plant and materials

d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)

e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones

f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation

g) vehicle routing

h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and 
a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused

Page 16

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 33

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the
hours of 8.30 and 9.15 am and 3.15 and 4.00 pm nor shall the 
contractor permit any HGVs associated with the development at the 
site to be laid up, waiting, in West Hill, Pound Lane, Meadway or 
Marshalls Close during these times
during these times

k) on-site turning for construction vehicles has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(6) All new photo voltaic panels or tiles shall be fitted flush with the 
adjoining roof surface and shall not project beyond the plane of the 
roof.

Reason:  To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure 
a satisfactory appearance to the buildings in accordance with policy 
DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 
2015

(7) The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until 
they have achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 
110 litres per person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason:   To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes 
efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(8) Prior to construction of the development hereby approved, plans 
and information relating to the following:

 A drainage layout detailing the exact location of SUDs elements, 
pipes, impervious areas and drainage sub-catchments (if applicable)

 Details of all SUDs elements and other drainage features, including 
long and cross sections, pipe diameters and respective levels

shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. 
The development will proceed only in complete accordance with the 
approved details.

Page 17

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 34

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Reason: To ensure the design fully meets the national SuDS 
technical standards.

(9) Before the commencement of the construction of the development 
hereby approved, details of how the Sustainable Drainage System 
will be protected and maintained during the construction of the 
development shall be submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out 
in strict accordance with those approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the construction works do not compromise 
the functioning of the agreed Sustainable Drainage System.

(10) Prior to construction of the development hereby approved, details of 
the proposed maintenance regimes for each of the SuDS elements 
must be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. 
The approved details shall be fully complied with for the duration of 
the development.

Reason: To ensure the drainage system is maintained throughout its 
life time to an acceptable standard.

(11) Prior to occupation, a verification report carried out by a qualified 
drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority to demonstrate that the Sustainable Drainage 
System has been constructed as per the agreed scheme.

Reason: To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System has been 
constructed as agreed.

(12) Prior to the first occupation of the new building, "woodcrete" soffit 
bird and bat   boxes shall be installed in accordance with details 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The 
boxes shall be retained thereafter.

Reason: To conserve and enhance biodiversity as required by Policy 
CS3 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(13) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:

1749_02 A

1749_10 A

1749_11 A

1749_12 A

1749_13 A

Page 18

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 35

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

1749_14 A

1749_15 A

1749_16 A

1749_17 B

1749_20 A 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to 
comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).  

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

(2) The water efficiency standard required under condition 7 has been 
adopted by the local planning authority through the Development 
Management Policies 2015.  This standard is the ‘optional 
requirement’ detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved 
Document (AD) Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A 
paragraph A1.  

The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through 
either:

a) using the ‘fittings approach’ where water fittings are installed as per 
the table at 2.1 in the AD or 

b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the 
AD Part G Appendix A.

(3) This form of development is considered liable for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new 
developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or 
more of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new 
dwelling, even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a 
standardised, non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per 
square metre, and are charged on the net additional floorspace 
generated by a development. 

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course. 

More information and the charging schedule are available online:

Page 19

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 36

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

 http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-
AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published

(4) No  construction work shall be carried out in such a manner as to be 
audible at the site boundary before 07:30 hours or after 18:30 hours 
Monday to Friday; no construction work shall be audible at the site 
boundary before 08:00 or after 13:00 hours on Saturdays and no 
construction work of any nature shall be carried out on Sundays or 
Bank/Public Holidays. 

(5) A report is to be submitted to the local planning authority, within 6 
months of the commencement of any use of any part of the building, 
to demonstrate that the renewable technologies (as detailed in the 
submitted Sustainability Statement) hereby approved have been fully 
implemented and are functioning.

Part B

1.3 In the event that the section 106 Agreement referred to in Part A is 
not completed by 16 October 2017 the Head of Place Development 
be authorised to refuse the application for the following reason:

1.4 In the absence of a completed legal obligation under section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the 
applicant has failed to comply with CS9 (Affordable Housing and 
CS12 (Developer Contributions) of the 2007 Core Strategy in relation 
to the off-site provision of affordable housing units, and a commuted 
sum in lieu of the off-site provision of affordable housing units.

22 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00063/FUL - NONSUCH PARK MANSION, 
NONSUCH PARK, EWELL ROAD, CHEAM SM3 8AL 

Description

Erection of shelter

Decision

Planning Permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 20

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 37

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans and documents: 
Drawing Numbers NLNSP-002 REV A and NLNSP-003 REV A.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to 
comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).  

(3) Prior to the commencement of development, details shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the 
development including all making good works, demonstrating that 
the finishing materials match those of the existing building/structure 
in size, colour, texture, profile, finish, bonding and pointing. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest 
of the listed building / In the interest of the character and appearance 
of the conservation area **** in accordance with Policy CS5 of the 
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

Informative:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

Note:  The Committee requested confirmation that the freeholders of Nonsuch 
Park, Surrey County Council were aware of the application.

23 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00232/FUL - LONGMEAD SOCIAL CENTRE, 
SEFTON ROAD, EPSOM, KT19 9HG 

Description

Relocation of a window and the installation of anew external door and access 
ramp.  (Amended drawings received 05.06.2017).

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Page 21

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 38

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2005

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed entirely of 
the materials as detailed on the schedule of materials on the 
planning application form.   

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007 and Policies DM9 and DM10 of 
the Development Management Policies Document 2015

(3) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved documents:  

Drawing No Long-gp-002B; No Long-gp-003A

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning as required by Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007.

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

(2) Works related to the construction of the development hereby 
permitted, including works of demolition or preparation prior to 
building operations shall not take place other than between the 
hours of 08.00 to 18.00 hours Mondays to Fridays; 08.00 to 13.00 
hours Saturdays; with no work on Saturday afternoons (after 13.00 
hours), Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays.

24 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00445/LBA - BOURNE HALL, SPRING STREET, 
EWELL KT17 1UD 

Description

Listed Building Consent for proposed replacement of existing light fittings with 
LED light fittings in Museum and Library areas of Grade II listed building.

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The works hereby granted shall be commenced before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this consent.

Page 22

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 39

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Reason: To comply with Section 18 (1) (a) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by Section 
52 (4) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans, received on 29 June 
2017: ‘Radiance Mounting Kits’ 21LFT 30705 Issue 2 PN 2551B Sep 
15, ‘Radiance Thorlux Lighting’ Apr 15; the following approved 
plans, dated 26 June 2017: Bourne-002A; and the following approved 
plans, dated 31 March 2017: Bourne-001A.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to 
comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

25 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00378/REM - 39 OAKS SQUARE, WATERLOO 
ROAD, EPSOM KT19 8AS 

Description

Variation of condition 15 of planning permission ref: 98/00104 to allow an 
extension of opening hours of food and drink premises for an extra hour on 
Friday and Saturday evenings from 23:00 to 24:00, in Christmas Eve (evening) 
23:00 until 01:00, on Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve (evening) 23:00 until 01:30 
on New Year’s Day, St George’s Day 23:00 until 24:00, St Patrick’s Day 23:00 
until 24:00 and Halloween 23:00 until 24:00.

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The extended operating hours hereby permitted shall be terminated 
on or before 7 September 2020 when this permission expires.

Reason: To ensure that the circumstances are reviewed at the 
expiration of the period permitted to ensure the development 
complies with Policy DM10, of the Development Management 
Policies Document 2015 and Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(2) The operating hours of the premises shall be as follows:

Page 23

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 7 September 2017 40

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Sunday –Thursday 08:00-23:00, Friday & Saturdays 08:00-24:00, 
Christmas Eve (evening) 08:00- 01:00 on Christmas Day, New Year’s 
Eve 08:00- 01:30 on New Year’s Day, St George’s Day 08:00- 24:00,St 
Patrick’s Day 08:00-24:00, and Halloween 08:00- 24:00.

Reason: To restrict the proposed use to daily periods which are 
acceptable having regard to the proposed location and to ensure 
that they proposed use does not prejudice the enjoyment by 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties as required by Policy 
DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

26 SITE VISITS 

The Committee reviewed and considered site visits and decided that a visit 
should be held at the appropriate time in connection with the following 
applications:

 5 Cox Lane, West Ewell KT19 9LR – 17/00121/FUL

 Cedar Lodge, Headley Road, Epsom KT18 6BH – 17/00441/FUL

 New development on NESCOT agricultural lane, Reigate Road, Epsom 
KT17 3DS – 17/00429/FUL

 Development at Upper High Street, Epsom KT17 4QS – 17/00001/FUL

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 9.35 pm

COUNCILLOR HUMPHREY REYNOLDS (CHAIRMAN)

Page 24

AGENDA ITEM 2



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5AZF

Variation of Condition 3 (Plans) of 15/01532/FUL (Conversion and extension of existing 
office building to provide 8x2 bed and 4x1 bed residential flats together with revised 
parking layout and external amenity space) to amend northern side annexe (as 
amended).

Ward: Town 
Contact Officer: John Mumford 

1 Plans and Representations

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically.  Please click on the 
following link to access the plans and representations relating to this 
application via the Council’s website, which is provided by way of 
background information to the report.  Please note that the link is current at 
the time of publication, and will not be updated. 

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1B0
GYH8600

2 Summary

2.1 This application proposes an amendment to the design and appearance of 
the northern side annexe that was approved under 15/01532/FUL as part of 
the conversion and extension of the existing Grade 2* Listed Building 
previously in office use to provide a total of 12 residential flats together with 
revised parking layout and external amenity space. 

2.2 The application is a major application and is accordingly referred to this   
committee for determination together with the associated 17/00548/LBA. It is 
recommended for approval.  

3 Site description

3.1 The application site comprises the 3 storey Ashley House and the adjoining 2 
storey annex to the south. The property is a Grade 2* listed building and is 
situated within the Epsom Town Centre Conservation Area. The property 
was originally built as a single residential dwelling and more recently it was in 
B1 office use but apart from a short-term let of a small part of the building it 
has been vacant since November 2011. There is no garden left for Ashley 
House and its annexe. All the land around its small curtilage is tarmac for car 
parking. Works have commenced on implementing 15/01532/FUL and 
15/01533/LBA.

3.2 Ashley House is set well back from its frontage on the west side of Ashley 
Road which is part of the one-way gyratory system. Wrapping around the 
western and northern boundaries to the site are the Ashley Centre facades 
including some office space and to the south is the service egress ramp from 
the Ashley Centre and beyond that is Finachem House that is in mixed office 
and student residential use.   

Page 25

AGENDA ITEM 3

http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1B0GYH8600
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1B0GYH8600
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1B0GYH8600


PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

4 Proposal

4.1 This application seeks planning permission for Variation of Condition 3 
(plans) of 15/01532/FUL to amend the northern side extension to the main 
building at Ashley House. The application seeks to reduce the size of the 
extension and keep the external appearance like the existing small annexe 
which will be extended to the rear. The rear two walls of the annexe would be 
demolished and the annexe extended to the rear, retaining the front as 
existing (with an inserted window) and the width retained. The extension to 
the rear is set back from the main house rear elevation to retain its 
subordinate appearance to the main building. 

4.2 The previously permitted scheme included a larger extension up to the 
shopping centre wall but rights of access over this unbuilt area to the side of 
the existing annexe have resulted in this revised scheme coming forward.

5 Comments from third parties

5.1 The application was advertised by means of letters of notification to 37 
neighbouring properties, a site notice and a notice in the local press. No 
representations have been received. 

6 Consultations

6.1 Historic England  –  This application proposes an amendment to the consented 
scheme (15/01533/LBA) for conversion of Ashley House to residential 
accommodation. Achieving a workable scheme which sustained the 
significance of this impressive late Palladian townhouse was always a 
challenge and was reliant in part on the demolition and reconstruction of a 
single storey side annexe. For practical reasons, it has since been established 
that building a wider single storey annex is not possible and so it is now 
proposed to retain the existing annex and to enlarge this by extending towards 
the rear of the site. 

6.2 We have no objection in principle to this as we recognise that re-working the 
annexe is essential to deliver a conversion which sustains the building’s 
significance as far as practical. The existing annexe is also well set back from 
the building’s principal elevation and is therefore a relatively discreet feature 
in views towards it. However, while that may be the case, we think the 
proposed changes must nonetheless aspire to create a high quality well 
detailed piece of architecture as far as this is feasible. 

6.3 A new window is proposed on the principal (road facing) elevation of the 
annexe and at the moment this seems rather on the small side, meaning that 
its proportions look a little odd impacting in a small way on the architectural 
qualities of the building as a whole and thus on its significance. We think this 
would be improved by enlarging the window here and suggest you 
encourage the applicants to amend the scheme. (Planning Officer comment: 
the applicant has subsequently further amended the scheme to enlarge the 
front facing and side elevation timber sash windows). 

Page 26

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.4 If your Council is minded to approve this application, we recommend 
conditioning the construction details, including detail of all new joinery, as 
well as requiring samples of new materials and details of the pointing profile 
for all new brickwork.

6.5 Borough Conservation Officer - The deviation from the permitted scheme 
causes no further harm to the significance of the designated heritage asset 
and there is no objection in terms of Policy DM8.

Page 27

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

7 Relevant planning history

Application 
number

Decision 
date

Application detail Decision

15/01532/FUL 22.06.2016 Conversion and extension of 
existing office building with 
additional floor of accommodation 
above southern wing and erection 
of new single storey extension on 
northern elevation to provide 8x2 
bed and 4x1 bed residential flats 
together with revised parking layout 
and external amenity space (as 
amended).

Granted 

15/01533/LBA 22.06.2016 Conversion and extension of 
existing office building with 
additional floor of accommodation 
above southern wing and erection 
of new single storey extension on 
northern elevation to provide  8x2 
bed and 4x1 bed residential flats 
together with revised parking layout 
and external amenity space (as 
amended).

Granted

16/00831/COND 14.11.2016 Details pursuant to Condition 7 
(Boundary treatment and storage 
facilities) and Condition 8 
(Arboricultural Method Statement) 
of planning permission 
15/01532/FUL.

Granted

16/00984/COND 15.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01533/LBA 
to partially discharge condition 2 
(materials), 3 joinery details) and 4 
(fire/acoustic treatment, glazing and  
pipework/ducting) for side annexes 
only.

Granted

16/00986/COND 15.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01532/FUL 
to discharge Conditions 2 
(materials) 9 (sustainability) for side 
annexes only and Condition 6 (hard 
and soft landscaping).

Granted

16/01061/COND 14.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01533/LBA 
to partially discharge condition 2 
(materials), 3 joinery details) and 4 

Granted

Page 28

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

(fire/acoustic treatment, glazing and  
pipework/ducting) for Main House 
only.

16/01062/COND 14.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01532/FUL 
to discharge Condition 2 (materials) 
for main house only.

Granted

16/01148/NMA 25.11.2016 Non-material amendment to 
15/01532/FUL to undertake minor 
internal layout changes.

Granted

17/00443/COND 25.09.2107 Details pursuant to 15/01532/FUL 
to discharge Condition 2 (brick 
sample materials) .

Granted

17/00548/LBA Listed Building Consent for 
amendments to northern side 
annexe previously approved under 
15/01533/LBA (Conversion and 
extension of existing office building 
with additional floor of 
accommodation above southern 
wing and erection of new single 
storey extension on northern 
elevation to provide  8x2 bed and 
4x1 bed residential flats together 
with revised parking layout and 
external amenity space) (as 
amended).

Under 
Consideration

8 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2012

Core Strategy 2007
Policy CS1 Sustainable development
Policy CS5 The built environment 
Policy CS6 Sustainability in new developments

Development Management Policies 2015  
Policy DM8 Heritage Assets
Policy DM9 Townscape character and local distinctiveness 
Policy DM10 Design requirements for new developments 
Epsom Town Centre Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management 
Proposals 2008

Page 29

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

9 Planning considerations

Impact on visual amenity

9.1 Ashley House is a Grade II* listed building of the late Georgian period and 
despite previous conversion to other uses, it retains an interior of exceptional 
quality.  Whether many of the elaborate interior finishes are part of the original 
architectural intention, or part of an extensive historic redecoration, they make 
a notable contribution to the special qualities of the designated heritage asset.

9.2  The high quality of the architecture and its prominence in the Epsom Town 
Centre Conservation Area make it a major contributor to the character and 
appearance of the conservation area. The minor amendment to the northern 
is considered appropriate to the character and appearance of the buildings. 

10 Conclusion

10.1 The minor amendment to the permitted 15/01532/FUL scheme for 
conversion of the listed building into residential flats is considered to be 
visually acceptable and causes no further harm to the significance of the 
designated heritage asset.

11 Recommendation

11.1 Planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before 22.06.2019.

Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

(2) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
of the materials to be used for the external  surfaces of the northern 
annexe  including all making good works, demonstrating that the 
finishing materials match those of the existing building/structure in size, 
colour, texture, profile, finish, bonding and pointing. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of 
the listed building / In the interest of the character and appearance of the 
conservation area  in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 
(2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(3) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Drawing Numbers P101Rev E, P102 
Rev E, P110 Rev D, P111 Rev D, P113 Rev B, D110 Rev D, D111 Rev C, 
D112 Rev C, D113 Rev B, 16.1113/P054 Rev B, 16.1113/P053 Rev B.

Page 30

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00547/REM
5 OCTOBER 2017

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development 
is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007). 

(4) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until space has 
been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans P101 
Rev E and P110 Rev D for vehicles and cycles to park and turning areas 
provided to enable vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear. 
The parking and turning areas shall be permanently retained exclusively 
for their designated purpose.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance 
with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM35 and 
DM37 of the Development Management Policies 2015. 

(5) Details of windows in the north elevation of the Annexe and south 
elevation of Ashley House of the development hereby permitted that are 
to be glazed with obscure glass of no less than obscurity level 3 and 
permanently fixed shut, unless the parts of the window/s which can be 
opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority prior to first occupation.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupants in accordance with 
Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) Works related to the construction of the development hereby permitted, 
including works of demolition or preparation prior to building operations 
shall not take place other than between the hours of 08.00 to 18.00 hours 
Mondays to Fridays; 08.00 to 13.00 hours Saturdays; with no work on 
Saturday afternoons (after 13.00 hours), Sundays, Bank Holidays or 
Public Holidays.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the 
requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012.

(2) If you need any advice regarding Building Regulations please do not 
hesitate to contact Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Building Control on 
01372 732000 or contactus@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Page 31

AGENDA ITEM 3

mailto:contactus@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



17/00547/REM
Ashley House, Ashley Rd, Epsom

-47.5m

ley Centre

BOROUGH COUNCIL

I Scale: 1:1062

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's  Stationery  Office© Crown Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

Page 33

AGENDA ITEM 3
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5AZF

Listed Building Consent for amendments to northern side annexe previously approved 
under 15/01533/LBA (Conversion and extension of existing office building with 
additional floor of accommodation above southern wing and erection of new single 
storey extension on northern elevation to provide  8x2 bed and 4x1 bed residential flats 
together with revised parking layout and external amenity space) (as amended).

Ward: Town 
Contact Officer: John Mumford 

1 Plans and Representations

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically.  Please click on the 
following link to access the plans and representations relating to this 
application via the Council’s website, which is provided by way of 
background information to the report.  Please note that the link is current at 
the time of publication, and will not be updated. 

Link:  http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1BB
GYH8700

2 Summary

2.1 This application proposes an amendment to the design and appearance of 
the northern side annexe that was approved under 15/01533/LBA as part of 
the conversion and extension of the existing Grade 2* Listed Building 
previously in office use to provide a total of 12 residential flats together with 
revised parking layout and external amenity space. 

2.2 The application is a Listed Building Application and accompanies the 
associated major application 17/00547/REM which is also on this agenda.  It 
is recommended for approval.  

3 Site description

3.1 The application site comprises the 3 storey Ashley House and the adjoining 2 
storey annex to the south. The property is a Grade 2* listed building and is 
situated within the Epsom Town Centre Conservation Area. The property 
was originally built as a single residential dwelling and more recently it was in 
B1 office use but apart from a short-term let of a small part of the building it 
has been vacant since November 2011. There is no garden left for Ashley 
House and its Annexe. All the land around its small curtilage is tarmac for car 
parking. Works have commenced on implementing 15/01532/FUL and 
15/01533/LBA.

Page 35

AGENDA ITEM 4

http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1BBGYH8700
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1BBGYH8700
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OSO1BBGYH8700


PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

3.2 Ashley House is set well back from its frontage on the west side of Ashley 
Road which is part of the one-way gyratory system. Wrapping around the 
western and northern boundaries to the site are the Ashley Centre facades 
including some office space and to the south is the service egress ramp from 
the Ashley Centre and beyond that is Finachem House that is in mixed office 
and student residential use.   

4 Proposal

4.1 This application seeks Listed Building Consent to amend the northern side 
extension to the main building at Ashley House. The application seeks to 
reduce the size of the extension and keep the external appearance like the 
existing small annexe which will be extended to the rear. The rear two walls 
of the annexe would be demolished and the annexe extended to the rear, 
retaining the front as existing (with an inserted window) and the width 
retained. The extension to the rear is set back from the main house rear 
elevation to retain its subordinate appearance to the main building. 

4.2 The proposed development has been amended since originally submitted in 
the light of comments received from Historic England to enlarge the front 
facing and side elevation timber sash windows to the northern annexe.

4.3 The previously permitted scheme included a larger extension up to the 
shopping centre wall but rights of access over this unbuilt area to the side of 
the existing annexe have resulted in this revised scheme coming forward.

5 Comments from third parties

5.1 The application was advertised by means of a site notice and a notice in the 
local press. No representations have been received. 

6 Consultations

6.1 Historic England  –  This application proposes an amendment to the consented 
scheme (15/01533/LBA) for conversion of Ashley House to residential 
accommodation. Achieving a workable scheme which sustained the 
significance of this impressive late Palladian townhouse was always a 
challenge and was reliant in part on the demolition and reconstruction of a 
single storey side annexe. For practical reasons, it has since been established 
that building a wider single storey annex is not possible and so it is now 
proposed to retain the existing annex and to enlarge this by extending towards 
the rear of the site. 

6.2 We have no objection in principle to this as we recognise that re-working the 
annexe is essential to deliver a conversion which sustains the building’s 
significance as far as practical. The existing annexe is also well set back from 
the building’s principal elevation and is therefore a relatively discreet feature 
in views towards it. However, while that may be the case, we think the 
proposed changes must nonetheless aspire to create a high quality well 
detailed piece of architecture as far as this is feasible. 

Page 36

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.3 A new window is proposed on the principal (road facing) elevation of the 
annexe and at the moment this seems rather on the small side, meaning that 
it proportions look a little odd impacting in a small way on the architectural 
qualities of the building as a whole and thus on its significance. We think this 
would be improved by enlarging the window here and suggest you 
encourage the applicants to amend the scheme. (Planning Officer comment: 
the applicant has subsequently further amended the scheme to enlarge the 
front facing and side elevation timber sash windows). 

6.4 If your Council is minded to approve this application, we recommend 
conditioning the construction details, including detail of all new joinery, as 
well as requiring samples of new materials and details of the pointing profile 
for all new brickwork.

6.5 Borough Conservation Officer - The deviation from the permitted scheme 
causes no further harm to the significance of the designated heritage asset 
and there is no objection in terms of Policy DM8.

Page 37

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

7 Relevant planning history

Application 
number

Decision 
date

Application detail Decision

15/01532/FUL 22.06.2016 Conversion and extension of 
existing office building with 
additional floor of accommodation 
above southern wing and erection 
of new single storey extension on 
northern elevation to provide 8x2 
bed and 4x1 bed residential flats 
together with revised parking layout 
and external amenity space (as 
amended).

Granted 

15/01533/LBA 22.06.2016 Conversion and extension of 
existing office building with 
additional floor of accommodation 
above southern wing and erection 
of new single storey extension on 
northern elevation to provide  8x2 
bed and 4x1 bed residential flats 
together with revised parking layout 
and external amenity space (as 
amended).

Granted

16/00831/COND 14.11.2016 Details pursuant to Condition 7 
(Boundary treatment and storage 
facilities) and Condition 8 
(Arboricultural Method Statement) 
of planning permission 
15/01532/FUL.

Granted

16/00984/COND 15.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01533/LBA 
to partially discharge condition 2 
(materials), 3 joinery details) and 4 
(fire/acoustic treatment, glazing and  
pipework/ducting) for side annexes 
only.

Granted

16/00986/COND 15.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01532/FUL 
to discharge Conditions 2 
(materials) 9 (sustainability) for side 
annexes only and Condition 6 (hard 
and soft landscaping).

Granted

16/01061/COND 14.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01533/LBA 
to partially discharge condition 2 
(materials), 3 joinery details) and 4 

Granted

Page 38

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

(fire/acoustic treatment, glazing and  
pipework/ducting) for Main House 
only.

16/01062/COND 14.12.2016 Details pursuant to 15/01532/FUL 
to discharge Condition 2 (materials) 
for main house only.

Granted

16/01148/NMA 25.11.2016 Non-material amendment to 
15/01532/FUL to undertake minor 
internal layout changes.

Granted

17/00443/COND 25.09.2107 Details pursuant to 15/01532/FUL 
to discharge Condition 2 (brick 
sample materials) .

Granted

17/00547/REM Variation of Condition 3 (Plans) of 
15/01532/FUL (Conversion and 
extension of existing office building 
to provide 8x2 bed and 4x1 bed 
residential flats together with 
revised parking layout and external 
amenity space) to amend northern 
side annexe. (as amended)

Under 
Consideration

8 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2012

Core Strategy 2007
Policy CS5 The built environment 

Development Management Policies 2015  
Policy DM8 Heritage Assets
Policy DM9 Townscape character and local distinctiveness 
Policy DM10 Design requirements for new developments 

Epsom Town Centre Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management 
Proposals 2008

9 Planning considerations

Impact on visual amenity

9.1 Ashley House is a Grade II* listed building of the late Georgian period and 
despite previous conversion to other uses, it retains an interior of exceptional 
quality.  Whether many of the elaborate interior finishes are part of the original 
architectural intention, or part of an extensive historic redecoration, they make 
a notable contribution to the special qualities of the designated heritage asset.

Page 39

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

9.2  The high quality of the architecture and its prominence in the Epsom Town 
Centre Conservation Area make it a major contributor to the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. The minor amendment to the northern 
is considered appropriate to the character and appearance of the buildings. 

10 Conclusion

10.1 The minor amendment to the permitted 15/01532/FUL scheme for 
conversion of the listed building into residential flats is considered to be 
visually acceptable and causes no further harm to the significance of the 
designated heritage asset.

11 Recommendation

11.1 Listed Building Consent is granted subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The works hereby granted shall be commenced before 22.06.2019.

Reason: To comply with Section 18 (1) (a) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by Section 52 
(4) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
of the materials to be used for the external  surfaces of the northern 
annexe  including all making good works, demonstrating that the 
finishing materials match those of the existing building/structure in size, 
colour, texture, profile, finish, bonding and pointing. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of 
the listed building / In the interest of the character and appearance of the 
conservation area  in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 
(2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(3) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Drawing Numbers P101Rev E, P102 
Rev E, P110 Rev D, P111 Rev D, P113 Rev B, D110 Rev D, D111 Rev C, 
D112 Rev C, D113 Rev B, 16.1113/P054 Rev B, 16.1113/P053 Rev B.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development 
is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007). 

(4) No work shall take place until detailed drawings and/or samples of all 
new internal and external joinery details including windows (depth of 
reveal, method of opening, details of heads, cills and lintels), doors 
frames (architraves, linings, mouldings and beading), staircases 
(including balusters, newel posts and handrails); beading and skirting 

Page 40

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00548/LBA
5 OCTOBER 2017

boards  have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The submitted details of sample elevations shall be 
at a scale of not less than 1:20, and horizontal/vertical frame sections 
(including sections through glazing bars) at a scale of not less than 1:2. 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of 
the listed building in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 
(2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(5) Prior to the commencement of development, details of new fire or 
acoustic interventions, secondary glazing (if required) and new pipework 
and extraction fans shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of 
the listed building in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 
(2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the 
requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012.

Page 41

AGENDA ITEM 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



17/00547/REM
Ashley House, Ashley Rd, Epsom

-47.5m

ley Centre

BOROUGH COUNCIL

I Scale: 1:1062

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's  Stationery  Office© Crown Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

Page 43

AGENDA ITEM 4
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

9 Lynwood Road, Epsom, Epsom, KT17 4LF

Objection to the implementation of a Tree Preservation Order on a group of 5 limes at 9 
Lynwood Close, Epsom - Tree Preservation Order No. 456

Ward: College
Contact Officer: Jeremy Young

1 Summary

1.1 This report is for the Planning Committee to consider whether to confirm Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO) No. 456 following objections to its implementation 
by the property owner of flat 1 - 9 Lynwood Road.

1.2 9 Lynwood Road is divided into 5 flats and is situated in the Burgh Heath Road 
Conservation Area.  A section 211 notice was received on 22/3/2017 from a 
tree work contractor acting on behalf of the owner of flat 1 (application No. 
16/01900/CAT).  This application gave six weeks’ notice that it was intended 
to pollard the 5 Lime trees situated on the property frontage.   Officers 
evaluated the proposal early in the application process and advised the agent 
that pruning was considered too harsh and detrimental to landscape amenity.  
The agent was advised that a Tree Preservation Order could be served to 
block the tree work proposal.  Officers recommended that the proposal should 
be amended to a lighter more sensitive operation of crown reduction and an 
alternative specification was suggested.  

1.3 No amendment to the specification was received and following an amenity 
appraisal of the trees, delegated authority was obtained and a provisional TPO 
was made on 3rd May 2017.

1.4 The flat owner at no.1 objected to the TPO on 14th May 2017.

1.5 Where objections are received these are reported for consideration by the 
Planning Committee. A decision is required whether the order should be 
confirmed, modified or revoked after taking into account the amenity 
implications and the validity of the objections received.

2 Site description

2.1 Lynwood Road was originally laid out for housing between 1895 and 1913.  
No. 9 Lynwood Road is an early 20th century house and along with 1, 7a and 
7b are the only buildings in this road that are shown in the 1913 map.  The 
property is a large detached property set in a spacious plot with a pleasant 
sylvan character to the grounds.  In 1949 permission was granted for the 
property to be converted into 5 flats.  The grounds are now communal gardens 
for the five flats.    

Page 45

AGENDA ITEM 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

2.2 The rear garden of No.9 has a more open character.  There are trees on the 
east boundary but the defining treescape feature from easterly views is a 
Copper Beech located in the rear garden of Leysin, Lynwood Avenue which 
adjoins the garden.  Leysin and No. 11 Lynwood Road are both infill properties 
built in the former garden extent of No.9.  Located on the south side of the 
garden between No. 9 and No.11 is a stand of mature, mainly broadleaf trees, 
that makes a good contribution to the sylvan quality of the garden and the 
street scene. On the frontage of the property are the 5 Lime trees that stand 
in a row.   

2.3 The five Lime trees subject of the TPO are the most visually dominant trees 
on the site when viewed from Lynwood Road frontage. Collectively these 
Limes give considerable sylvan amenity and character to the landscape of the 
street and the front garden environs.  The trees are estimated to be 70 years 
old.  Limes are long lived species and can have a life expectancy over 200 
years.  These trees are therefore of middle age class with potentially good 
longevity.  The Limes have attained average crown spreads of approximately 
8-11m and the trees are located approximately 14m from the front of the 
house.   In height the trees range between 9m and 15m.  They are all lapsed 
pollards but two of the trees are smaller as they have been pollarded more 
recently. 

2.4 All five Limes have been assessed to be in a good condition.  The stems 
appear outwardly sound, free from adverse pathogens (diseases) and the 
trees have no observable biomechanical defects.  Minor dead wood was 
observed in the crowns, which is natural. 

2.5 The canopy of the Limes hangs a little low over the highway but this could be 
easily remedied by periodic light tree surgery.  At a distance of 14m from the 
house there is sufficient spatial separation for the trees to grow to their full 
potential and not encroach directly on the building. However, it is accepted 
that if the trees reached their full height and spread they would shade the 
building. 

3 Proposal

3.1 When a tree preservation order is served it takes effect immediately for a 
provisional period.  If the TPO is to remain valid it must be confirmed within 
expiry of six months from the date the order is made or a new order has to be 
made.  There is an opportunity for those affected by the TPO to raise an 
objection or make comments.  The Committee has agreed that any 
unchallenged orders are confirmed automatically.  Where objections are 
received these are reported for consideration by the Planning Committee and 
a decision is required whether the Order should be confirmed, modified or 
revoked after taking into account the amenity of the tree and validity of the 
objections received.

3.2 Subsequent to the making of this TPO one objection has been received to its 
implementation from the owners of flat 1 – 9 Lynwood Road.  The letter of 
objection is appended to this report and Members are advised to take account 
of the points raised.

Page 46

AGENDA ITEM 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

3.3 In summary the basis of the objection to the TPO on the Limes are set out 
below:

 The trees are not deemed to be of high public amenity.

 Three of the trees represent a risk of danger from falling debris (most 
notably to cars parked in the street).

 The risk of the trees being felled or pruned inappropriately is unfounded.

 Previous land owners are felt to have neglected the trees which are 
vigorous.  The proposed work, although more extensive, is only to 
redress this backlog. 

 Residents feel that the pruning would improve visual amenity.

4 Consultation and comments from third parties

4.1 The TPO was served on the owner/occupier of the 5 flats and the freeholder.  
The trees do not overhang neighbouring property other than the public 
highway.

4.2 Neighbours have not submitted written objections or observations on the TPO 
and no letters have been received in support of the TPO.

4.3 Relevant planning history

Application number Decision date Application detail Decision

9903/986 01/11/1949 Conversion into 5 flats Agreed

96/00602/CLE 28/10/1996 Use as 5 contained 
flats

Permitted

09/00060/CAT 21/05/2009 Felling of Lime No objection raised

16/01900/CAT 03/05/2017 Pollarding of 5 Limes Proposal blocked by TPO

5 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2012
Chapter 11 Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Core Strategy 2007
Policy CS1 Sustainable Development
Policy CS5 Built Environment

Development Management Policies 2015  
Policy DM5 Trees and Landscape
Policy DM9 Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness

Page 47

AGENDA ITEM 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

6 Planning considerations

6.1 Amenity Considerations

6.2 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Section 198 provides that Local 
Planning Authorities may make a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) if it appears 
to them to be “expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the 
preservation of trees or woodlands in their area”. Tree preservation orders and 
trees in conservation areas planning practice guidance (updated 6/3/2014) 
recommends that “TPO’s should be used to protect selected trees and 
woodlands if their removal would have a significant negative impact on the 
local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before authorities make or 
confirm an Order they should be able to show that protection would bring a 
reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future”

6.3 To define what amenity means in practice, the Council’s procedure is to use a 
systematic scoring system to evaluate whether a tree/s has sufficient amenity 
to justify the serving of a TPO. This also ensures a consistent approach to tree 
protection across the Borough.  In considering the amenity value such factors 
as the size, age, condition, form, rarity, prominence, screening value, 
appropriateness to setting and presence of other trees are taken into account.

6.4 In considering the Conservation Area Notice to Pollard the Lime trees the Tree 
Evaluation Method for Preservation Order (TEMPO) system was undertaken 
to evaluate whether a TPO in this case was defensible and justified.  Under 
this system the trees scored a sufficiently high grade to justify the TPO. The 
amenity appraisal demonstrates that it is both expedient and appropriate to 
protect the Limes in the interest of amenity. The tree amenity evaluation data 
sheet and decision guide are attached to this report.

6.5 The Limes make a very pleasant contribution to the amenity of the landscape 
and in particular enhance the pleasant leafy character of the road.  Officers 
noted that the aesthetic quality of the trees enriches the site and helps soften 
the built form. In addition ornamental qualities of the trees such as the yellow 
autumn colouring, vividly fresh juvenile foliage in the spring and the trees 
general contribution to green infrastructure was noted.   Heavy pollarding of 
the trees, as specified, would have significantly denuded the tree mass and 
their contribution to the landscape.  The tree work would have been very 
noticeable because the Limes are clearly visible in the public realm (the street) 
and the large extent of tree canopy mass proposed to be removed would leave 
a very skeletal and bare tree form.  In the case of the larger three Limes the 
resultant pruning wounds from this work would be detrimental to the health of 
the trees because of the excessive pruning wound size and the increased risk 
of decay entering and rotting the woody structure.  A TPO was deemed 
justified because of foreseen damage to the trees and harm to landscape 
amenity.  Creation of the tree preservation order was deemed necessary as 
the work could proceed by default after the six week section 211 Notice unless 
the Council acted by making a Tree Preservation Order to block the proposal 
and protect the trees. 

Page 48

AGENDA ITEM 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.6 Members should also be aware that the Burgh Heath Road Conservation Area 
Character Appraisal and Management Proposal 2010 makes special mention 
of the sylvan character trees give to this area.  The study views the treescape 
of the conservation area to be a very positive benefit and advocates that all 
trees need to be protected from inappropriate lopping or felling to help 
preserve the attractive spacious and sylvan character.

6.7 Validity of the Objections

6.8 Officers have considered the reasons for the objection to the TPO and do not 
feel these reason are justified.  Officers do not agree that the trees have low 
public amenity.  The trees are fairly sizable, clearly visible in the public realm, 
attractive, are in a good condition and have a good future life expectancy.  
They have the potential to get larger and contribute further.

6.9 There appears to be a misunderstanding by the applicant that the Council can 
refuse conservation area tree work notifications.  This is not the case. The 
Council can either raise no objection or they have to make a TPO to prevent 
the tree works.  The potential consequences of creating a TPO was 
communicated to the applicant’s agent early in the application process.  An 
opportunity was given for them to amend the proposal which was not taken 
up. Officers recommended the following tree work:-

  2 smaller Limes – Thin the crowns by 35% and raise the crowns for 3.75m ground 
clearance.  Reduce lateral branches towards the road to a line just back from the 
kerb line.
3 Larger Limes – Raise the crowns for 4m ground clearance.  Reduce the crown 
height by 2m and radial spread by 1.5m, pruning back to suitably strong growing 
points.  Clean out dead wood.

6.10 There is no evidence to support that three of the trees are in a dangerous 
condition.  Minor dead wood was noted in the crowns of the trees but this could 
be simply addressed with pruning work to remove dead branches and stubs.  
The Council has no objection to this routine maintenance and the removal of 
dead wood is classed as an exception to the normal requirement to obtain tree 
work consent.  Dead wood removal can therefore proceed without the need 
for an application to be approved.  

6.11 Officers consider that some of the concern over safety of the Limes arises 
because of an apprehension over their size and the target area of parked cars 
below.  Often there is a perception that trees need to be reduced regularly to 
keep them contained and safe.  Such views are not supported by arboricultural 
evidence and to the contrary heavy pruning of trees can often introduce decay 
which means the trees become more hazardous in the future.

Page 49

AGENDA ITEM 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.12 Pollarding is an operation that can sometimes be practiced to manage trees.  
It originates from old pasture wood systems where ladders were leant against 
trees and branches periodically cut off for firewood, pole etc. In more recent 
years the practice has fallen into decline as tree surgeons, with more 
sophisticated climbing equipment, are now able to access most parts of a 
tree’s canopy and undertake more sensitive pruning works.  Pollarding is 
detrimental to tree health if it involves heavily pruning back trees with full or 
regrown crowns.  Modern practice only advocates pollarding 1) early in a tree’s 
life cycle and pruning regularly thus limiting the size of pruning wounds; or 2) 
if the tree is over-mature and it is a means of prolonging the safe retention of 
the tree.     The British standard for tree work 3998 2010 advises that it is 
undesirable to wound trees so severely that major dieback or extensive decay 
is likely to ensue.  The standard specifically states that retrenchment pruning 
(light phased crown reduction) is the main option for managing lapsed pollards.    
In this case officers are not discounting sensitive pruning, they are just 
objecting to heavy crown reduction which is likely to be detrimental to the 
health and amenity of the trees. Light or selected crown reduction will reduce 
end loading weight of branches sufficiently to relieve biomechanical pressure 
from leverage forces.  The tree work likely to be looked upon favourably will 
ensure the trees are managed for safety but also in a way which preserves 
their aesthetic contribution to amenity.   

6.13 Officers have indicated the proposed level of pollarding to these Limes which 
was sought from this application, by marking the pruning points (with red 
dashed lines) on the photographs attached to this report.  Members should be 
aware that if this TPO is not confirmed heavy pruning to these points could 
then proceed.   

Expediency

6.14 The pollarding notification indicates the applicant’s intention for the trees.  
Officers have assessed that this pruning is inappropriate. In view of this   
appraisal it would therefore seem reasonable for the Council to believe the 
trees are at risk of being pruned in a harmful way.    

6.15 Once the amenity assessment indicates the trees are worthy of protection and 
there is a risk the proposal will be harmful to amenity it becomes more 
compulsive for the Council to act and issue a TPO. 

6.16 Confirming the TPO will have the effect of creating a planning constraint on 
the use of the land, however this impact is not considered to be a 
disproportionate burden on the owner or leaseholders who would retain the 
right to make applications for tree works and appeal planning decisions.

7 Conclusion

7.1 Lynwood Road is an attractive tree lined road and is popular for its older style 
houses and leafy appeal.  The Limes make a significant contribution to this 
sylvan character of the local landscape and street scene.  The Limes are all 
healthy of good form with a useful degree of safe life expectancy. 

Page 50

AGENDA ITEM 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01900/CAT
5 OCTOBER 2017

7.2 If the order is not confirmed the trees could be heavily pollarded to the 
detriment of their health, visual character and amenity to the landscape.

7.3 The inappropriate tree work proposed is contrary to policies contained in the 
Development Management Policies Document and the Core Strategy of the 
Local Development Framework - these seek to conserve and enhance 
landscape character and the natural environment. Confirmation of the TPO 
and retention of the tree promotes environmental sustainability.

7.4 It is the officer’s view that the objections raised against the making of Tree 
Preservation Order No. 456 do not override the public interest to protect the 
trees as an amenity and natural feature.

8 Recommendation

8.1 That Tree Preservation Order No. 456 is confirmed without modification.

Page 51

AGENDA ITEM 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



!(

G1 

10

1

2

4

7

9

Hill

43

18

14

45

16

7a
7b

11

House

LB

14a

16a

Leysin

Zebrato

Lynwood

18
LYNWOOD ROAD

BURGH HEATH ROAD

LYNWOOD AVENUE

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with 
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery 
Office Crown Copyright. Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 
License No 100023771 2008.

K
1:1,000Date: 27/4/2017

Revision No:
Reference: TPO 456
Created by: Jeremy Young

G1 - Group of 5 Lime trees. 9 Lynwood Road, Epsom

Page 53

AGENDA ITEM 5
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Page 55

AGENDA ITEM 5
ANNEXE 2



Page 56

AGENDA ITEM 5
ANNEXE 2



TREE EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS (TEMPO):

SURVEY DATA SHEET & DECISION GUIDE

Part 1: Amenity assessment
a) Condition & suitability for TPO:
Refer to Guidance Note for definitions

5) Good Highly suitable
3) Fair Suitable
1) Poor Unlikely to be suitable
0) Unsafe Unsuitable
0) Dead Unsuitable

b) Remaining longevity (in years) & suitability for TPO:
Refer to ‘Species Guide’ section in Guidance Note

5) 100+ Highly suitable
4) 40-100 Very suitable
2) 20-40 Suitable
1) 10-20 Just suitable
0) <10 Unsuitable

c) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO:
Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use; refer to Guidance Note

5) Very large trees, or large trees that are prominent landscape features Highly suitable
4) Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable
3) Medium trees, or larger trees with limited view only Just suitable
2) Small trees, or larger trees visible only with difficulty Unlikely to be suitable
1) Young, v. small, or trees not visible to the public, regardless of size Probably unsuitable

d) Other factors
Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify

5) Principal components of arboricultural features, or veteran trees
4) Members of groups of trees important for their cohesion
3) Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat importance
2) Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual
1) Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features

Part 2: Expediency assessment 
Trees must have accrued 9 or more points to qualify; refer to Guidance Note

5) Known threat to tree
3) Foreseeable threat to tree
2) Perceived threat to tree
1) Precautionary only
0) Tree known to be an actionable nuisance

Part 3: Decision guide

Any 0 Do not apply TPO
1-6 TPO indefensible
7-10 Does not merit TPO
11-14 TPO defensible
15+ Definitely merits TPO

Tree details
TPO Ref: G1 TPO 456

Tree/Group No: G1 Species: Lime 
Owner (if known): 
Location: 9 Lynwood Road, Epsom.

Score & see report
5

Score & see report
4

Score & see report
1

Score & 
see 
report
4

Add 
Scores for 
Total:
17

Date: 27/4/2017 Surveyor: Jeremy 
Young

Score & see report
3

Decision:
TPO 
recommen
ded

Page 57

AGENDA ITEM 5
ANNEXE 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Page 59

AGENDA ITEM 5
ANNEXE 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Page 61

AGENDA ITEM 5
ANNEXE 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

New Development on NESCOT Agricultural Land, Reigate Road, Ewell, Surrey

Construction of 88 residential dwellings with associated access, open space, car parking, 
landscaping and other works (as amended)

Ward: Nonsuch
Contact Officer: John Mumford

1 Plans

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically.  Please click on the 
following link to access the plans and representations relating to the originally 
permitted application via the Council’s website, which is provided by way of 
background information to the report.  

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OROJJS
GYH1W00

2 Summary

2.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 88 residential 
dwellings with associated works on the vacant site immediately adjacent to the 
north and west of the residential housing development now largely completed 
on the former agricultural land used by Nescot.  

2.2 The application site was previously granted planning permission by Committee 
in November 2014 for a 150 bed residential care home (Use Class C2) under 
reference 14/00967/FUL but this scheme is not being implemented and the 
site has been acquired by the adjacent residential developer who wish to 
implement a ‘Phase 2’ Use Class C3 residential scheme comprising 7 x 2 
bedroom (b) 4 person (p) houses, 4 x 3b5p houses, 19 x 3b6p houses, 18 
x1b2p apartments, 4 x 2b3p apartments and 36 x 2b4p apartments. 

2.3 The application is referred to the planning committee as it is a major 
application. 

2.4 The application is recommended for APPROVAL as it involves a policy 
compliant residential development and there are no visual, residential amenity 
or other concerns relating to the proposal.

3 Site description

3.1 The application site comprises a broadly rectangular site totalling 1.55 
hectares forming the north-western corner of the previous Nescot animal 
husbandry site. The site is bounded immediately to the north by the Ewell By-
pass (A24), and to the west by Reigate Road (A240). To the south is Roman 
Way and to the and east is Collingridge Way which form part of the residential 
development permitted under 15/00098/FUL for the erection of 91 x 3, 4 and 
5 bedroom houses that are currently part occupied and part under 
construction. 

Page 63

AGENDA ITEM 6

http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OROJJSGYH1W00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OROJJSGYH1W00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OROJJSGYH1W00


PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

4 Proposal

4.1 The application seeks permission for the erection of 88 dwellings with an 
associated access, open space, car parking, landscaping and other works. 
The proposed development comprises a mix of two storey detached and semi-
detached houses together with five separate apartment blocks of three 
storey/two and a half storey next to the Ewell By-pass frontage and close to 
the centre of the site. The house types in terms of scale, design and materials 
would be similar to those erected under 15/00098/FUL on the adjacent site. 
The apartment blocks would have pitched tiled roofs and articulated with 
gables, hanging tiles and roof dormers and use of materials would be similar 
to those used under 15/00098/FUL.

4.2 The proposed dwelling mix would be 7 x 2b4p houses, 4 x 3b5p houses, 19 x 
3b6p houses, 18 x1b2p apartments, 4 x 2b3p apartments and 36 x 2b4p 
apartments. 

4.3 Two of 1b2p apartments, three of the 2b4p apartments and two of the 3b5p 
houses are proposed as shared-ownership dwellings. Three of the 1b2p 
apartments, six of the 2b4p apartments and two of the 3b5p houses are 
proposed as rented units.       

4.4 Access to the site would be via two spurs off the recently constructed main 
access spine road (Roman Way) connecting with Reigate Road to the west of 
the site. There is also a “left-out only” arrangement in the north-west corner of 
the 15/0098/FUL development which connects to the Ewell By-pass and would 
be available for use by future residents. 

4.5 Car parking would be provided for the apartments on a 1 space per unit basis 
totalling 58 spaces close to the buildings whilst 2 parking spaces would be 
provided for each of the houses either in attached garages or on the driveway.

4.6 The development will be softened throughout the public realm with planting 
and landscaping. An enhanced landscape buffer of between 3.0m to 5.0m 
depth will be provided behind the existing hedge boundaries to Ewell By-pass 
and Reigate Road.   

4.7 The applicant has engaged in pre-application discussions with planning 
officers and a public information event also took place in April to inform the 
local community of the proposed plans.

4.8 The applicant has submitted in support of the development proposal a number 
of technical reports including: Design and Access Statement;  Transport 
Assessment and draft Travel Plan; Energy and Sustainability Assessment; 
Noise Assessment; Ecology Assessment; Tree Report; Flood Risk 
Assessment, including Drainage Strategy; Landscaping Plan and Detailed 
Planting Details; Viability Appraisal.

Page 64

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

5 Comments from third parties

5.1 The application was advertised by means of letters to 74 neighbouring 
properties, a site and press notice. To date (19.09.17) 18 resident objections 
have been received on the following grounds:

 This number of properties (88) is totally unacceptable as it will include 
smaller semi-detached houses and flats leading to over density and a 
serious lack of parking spaces which will cause residents to park in nearby 
roads;

 The high density design of the development will be totally out of keeping 
with the low-rise detached and semi-detached housing in the surrounding 
area. The visual impact of the development will be considerable.

 The area is predominately detached houses with large gardens and a 
proposal like this will only be to the detriment of the area as a whole and 
will overburden already stretched local nurseries, schools, hospitals and 
doctors surgeries;

 Any further addition to the housing stock on this scale should carry 
associated mandatory upgrades to the local infrastructure to cope with 
the volume of people and impact on the surrounding area; 

 The buildings are too tall and imposing and add to the corridor of 
development from Ewell to Epsom. They will dominate the junction and 
remove the sense of open space when looking south along the Reigate 
Road;

 Insufficient car parking and road widths will lead to parking chaos on site 
and will add traffic to an already busy new T-junction onto the Reigate 
Road;

 Further noise and disturbance from construction site traffic after having 
suffered for 2 years; 

 An ecological review should be undertaken prior to development because 
bats have been observed flying around; 

 The high density design of the development, including some three storey 
buildings, will be totally out of keeping with the low-rise detached and 
semi-detached housing in the surrounding area; 

 Vehicles accessing Reigate Road from Sycamore Gardens are already 
causing problems for residents of Reigate Road and Beach Walk. An 
additional 88 housing units could over time lead to an additional +100 
vehicles regularly using the Reigate Road entrance to Sycamore 
Gardens,

creating high levels of traffic congestion and pollution, and increasing road 
safety risks;

 Potential health risks associated with a second electricity sub-station 
being proposed next to an existing dwelling (Planning Officer comment: 
the Borough Environmental Health Officer has advised that all All modern 
substations would be expected to meet International Commission on 
Non-ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP) guidelines. It is not envisaged 
that the sub-station will be a significant source of electro-magnetic 
radiation as sub-stations are usually well insulated and shielded with 
radiation levels well below the ICNIRP reference levels.);

Page 65

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

 The new application would result in a total of 179 new dwellings, above 
the ‘low density residential development’ previously stated by the 
developer for the original 91 dwellings which equated to 23 dwellings per 
hectare or 120 dwellings across the wider site. The proposal equates to 
double the density of the existing development.  

 There are also very few parking spaces already, so the concern is that 
parking issues will affect those in the neighbouring roads. Increased 
traffic will make accessing Reigate Road from the development even 
more difficult;

 Phase I at least has the open green spaces, which makes a huge 
difference. There seem to be no proposals for this for Phase II which 
would give it a very different feel; 

 The development is not consistent with a residential area comprising 
predominantly detached houses rather than flats;

 We would like to see the development in keeping with the current 
approach in Sycamore Gardens and more sympathetic with the rest of 
the area, specifically with the flats replaced by houses, the introduction of 
more landscaping and parking consistent with likely need and usage;

 Take light and privacy away and create more noise from current pleasant 
and peaceful surroundings.

  

5.2 The Association of Ewell Downs Residents has objected on the grounds that 
the previous care home proposal for the site would have placed little if any 
pressure on the local community whilst the current proposal would increase 
pressure on NHS services, school places, traffic congestion and vehicle 
pollution. 

5.3 Epsom Civic Society – welcome the proposal that the land should be 
developed as the second phase of the housing site which would provide a 
substantial amount towards the housing requirements of the Borough. Our 
support is subject to consultations demonstrating that local infrastructure 
would be able to cope. 

5.4 Epsom Civic Society comment that Phase 1 was a low density scheme of 91 
houses representing 25 dph. This application proposes 88 units on  an area of 
1.55ha amounting to 57 dph. Overall the whole estate would be equivalent to 
34 dph. Whilst phase 2 is denser than we would wish, the overall density is 
not unreasonable and we do not make a major issue of this.  The proposed 29 
affordable units only represents 33%; this is unsatisfactory and the full 40% 
should be required. In terms of viability the applicants were fully aware of the 
affordable housing requirements when they purchased the land and we cannot 
accept that costs prevent the provision of the proper amount as defined in 
CS9.   

Page 66

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

6 Consultations

6.1 Surrey County Council – No objections subject to standard conditions requiring 
the proposed vehicular access and parking to be laid out prior to first 
occupation and a construction transport management plan to be agreed prior 
to commencement of development.  It is also proposed that there should be a 
S106 Agreement before the grant of planning permission requiring:
A contribution of £5,000 towards accessibility improvements to the bus stop 
in Reigate Road at the end of Mongers Lane serving the 470 bus route 
(Epsom- Sutton) consisting of raised kerbs for 9.0m.

6.2 Strategic Housing Manager -  The applicant  intends to develop a scheme of 
88 residential units on the former animal husbandry land adjacent to Nescot. 
They have submitted a viability assessment that seeks to demonstrate that it 
is not viable to deliver the required affordable housing contribution of 35 units. 
The two major issues identified by the applicant appear to be the rising cost of 
construction and the price paid for the land. 

6.3 An independent viability consultant was appointed to review the viability 
submission on the Council’s behalf. Each of the assumptions within the 
submitted viability appraisal including the price paid for the site, developer 
profit, market sale expectations and build costs were assessed, scrutinised 
and challenged against current market norms and benchmarks. As a result of 
this thorough process the independent viability consultant concluded that the 
scheme would not be able to support a policy compliant affordable housing 
contribution.

6.4 However, the scheme is able to deliver some affordable housing on site. The 
applicants’ preference is to deliver 29 shared ownership (part-buy, part-rent) 
homes on site with a 50% equity share being sold in each of the homes on 
site. This equates to an affordable housing contribution of 33% affordable 
housing against a policy requirement of 40%. The attraction of a fully shared 
ownership scheme is clear from the applicant’s viewpoint as they would 
receive the sales proceeds of 50% of each of the 29 homes on site 
immediately, whereas with affordable rented homes a rent of 80% of open 
market rent is paid annually and does not come with the benefit of an initial 
lump sum cash injection.

6.5 The proposal to deliver all homes as shared ownership tenure is a significant 
departure from the Council’s required tenure split as set out in the Core 
Strategy of 70:30 affordable rent to intermediate tenure (shared ownership) 
tenure. The policy on tenure split was set in the knowledge that the majority of 
households in housing needs within the Borough can only realistically afford 
to rent a home and that home ownership, even on a part-buy/ part-rent basis 
is beyond the means of the majority of households on the Housing Needs 
Register.

Page 67

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.6 Added to this, the Strategic Housing Market Assessment commissioned by the 
Council in 2016, indicates that there is an over-supply of shared ownership 
accommodation in the Borough. There is an on-going and pressing demand 
to deliver affordable rented accommodation, not least due to the pressures 
created by the high cost to the Borough Council of supporting households in 
temporary forms of housing (the cost of which can be in excess of £24,000 per 
annum to support just one family in Bed & Breakfast accommodation). Delivery 
of affordable rented accommodation is therefore essential to properly meet 
housing needs and to reduce the unsustainable financial burden placed on the 
Council of supporting households in emergency accommodation.

6.7 In consultation with the Head of Housing and Community, it was agreed that 
the proposal to deliver all homes as shared ownership tenure would not meet 
priority housing needs and was therefore unacceptable.

6.8 As an alternative, the applicants have therefore proposed that they deliver 11 
homes for affordable rent and 7 for shared ownership. Representing an 
affordable housing contribution of 20%, the homes would be provided as 
follows:

Type Tenure No.

1b2p F AR 3

2b4p F AR 6

3b5p H AR 2

1B2P F SO 2

2b4p F SO 3

3B5p H SO 2

 Total 18

6.9 Although the revised affordable housing offer of 18 homes will see less 
affordable homes delivered on site overall, the homes delivered will meet 
priority housing needs, help those in greatest housing need and assist the 
Council in the prevention of homelessness and by association reducing 
potential revenue costs in this area. 

6.10 By agreeing to provide affordable rented accommodation, the applicant will 
receive less of an initial cash injection in the form of shared ownership sales 
receipts which clearly has an impact on the overall viability of the scheme. This 
is the reason why the fully shared ownership offer would deliver 29 affordable 
units, but the rented and shared ownership offer delivers 18 units. It is the latter 
offer that meets affordable housing need and complies with the Council’s 
policy on tenure.

Page 68

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.11 As is the usual approach where an applicant raises the issue of viability, a 
review mechanism should be used in order to secure the Council’s position. 
The applicants will be required to reach slab level of construction on 10 units 
within two years of planning permission having been granted, if not a (viability) 
review process will be triggered to ensure that the permission is not ‘land 
banked’ in order to avoid a full affordable housing contribution.

6.12 Environmental Agency  -  Consider that planning permission should only be 
granted to the proposed development as submitted if appropriate site 
investigation, risk assessment and remediation conditions to prevent 
contamination of the Principal Aquifer below the site.  (Planning Officer 
comment: The Environment Agency have proposed particular conditions to be 
attached and these have been reviewed and adapted by the Borough 
Contamination Land Officer as set out below).

6.13 Borough Contaminated Land Officer – the conditions recommended by the 
Environment Agency have been incorporated into the following conditions that 
will also satisfy the Borough Council’s preventative contaminated land 
requirements:

Condition 1 Prior to the commencement of development approved by this 
planning permission (or such other date or stage in development as may be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) and in accordance with 
current best practice guidance, the following components of a scheme to deal 
with any ground contamination and ground gas (including volatile 
hydrocarbons) related risks shall each be submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the local planning authority: 

1) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 
 all previous and current uses;
 potential contaminants associated with those uses;
 a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and 

receptors; and 
 potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination.  

2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a 
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including 
those off site. 

3) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred 
to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy 
giving full details of the remediation measures required and how they are to 
be undertaken.

4) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order 
to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are 
complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. Any 
changes to these components require the express consent of the local 
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 

Page 69

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

Condition 2 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is 
found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until 
the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local 
Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with.  The remediation strategy shall be 
implemented as approved, verified and reported to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority.  

Condition 3 Prior to occupation of the development, a verification report 
demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation 
strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the local planning authority.  The report shall include 
results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved 
verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been 
met.  It shall also include any plan (a "long-term monitoring and maintenance 
plan") for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and 
arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification plan, if 
appropriate, and for the reporting of this to the local planning authority.  Any 
long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as 
approved.  

Condition 4 Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods 
shall not be permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has 
been demonstrated via a risk assessment carried out in accordance with the 
Environment Agency’s guidance 'Piling into Contaminated Sites' that there is 
no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

6.14 Surrey CC as Lead Flood Authority has reviewed the surface water drainage 
strategy for the proposed development and assessed it against the 
requirements under NPPF, its accompanying PPG and Technical Standards. 
It is satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the requirements set 
out in the aforementioned documents and can recommend planning 
permission is granted. It is recommended that should planning permission be 
granted, suitably worded conditions are applied to ensure that the SuDS 
Scheme is properly implemented and maintained throughout the lifetime of the 
development and suggests conditions 16 and 17. 

6.15 Surrey CC Archaeologist - confirms that all requirements for archaeological 
work in respect of this site have been satisfied under Condition 13 (discharged) 
of  14/00967/FUL and that no further archaeological work is required in respect 
of the new application. 

6.16 Borough Environmental Health Officer – recommends a condition to ensure 
the dwellings are not adversely affected by traffic noise and this is attached as 
condition 18.

Page 70

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

6.17 Epsom and Ewell Cycling Action Group has commented that improvements 
for pedestrians/cyclists onwards to Ewell Village are necessary both to satisfy 
DM36 "protect and enhance pedestrian and cycle access to...development 
sites" and for the Travel Plan to be considered satisfactory. It is requested that 
the application should only be approved with the following conditions attached:

1. Pedestrian/cycle access at the north eastern corner of the site. (Planning 
Officer comment: it is not considered necessary to provide a separate 
pedestrian/cycle access at this point which would compromise the screen 
landscaping zone) 

2. Shared use pavement on Reigate Road (between A24 and Ewell High 
Street) north side with raised tables at all vehicular entrances/exits. (Planning 
Officer comment: this can be considered within the Regulation 123 list of 
infrastructure improvements funded in whole or in part by CIL) 

7 Relevant planning history

Application 
number

Decision 
date

Application detail Decision

14/00967/FUL 19.12.14 Development of a 150 room 
dementia care home, nursing 
home and Assisted Living Extra 
Care units (Class C2). 
Resubmission, with associated 
landscaping and car parking.

Granted

8 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2012
Chapter 6: Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

Core Strategy 2007
Policy CS1 Creating Sustainable Communities
Policy CS3 Biodiversity and Designated Nature Conservation Areas
Policy CS4 Open Space and Green Infrastructure
Policy CS5 The Built Environment
Policy CS6 Sustainability in New Developments
Policy CS7 Housing Provision
Policy CS8 Broad Location of Housing Development
Policy CS9 Affordable Housing
Policy CS12 Developer Contributions to Community Infrastructure
Policy CS16 Managing Transport and Travel

Development Management Policies 2015  
Policy DM4 Biodiversity and New Development
Policy DM5 Trees and Landscape
Policy DM9 Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness
Policy DM10 Design Requirements for New Developments

Page 71

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

Policy DM11 Housing Density
Policy DM12 Housing Standards
Policy DM13 Building Heights
Policy DM17 Contaminated land
Policy DM19 Flood Protection
Policy DM21 Meeting Local Housing Needs
Policy DM22 Housing Mix
Policy DM35 Transport and New Development
Policy DM36 Sustainable Transport for new Development
Policy DM37 Parking Standards

Revised Supplementary Planning Document 2014 - Developer Contributions
Supplementary Planning Document 2012 - Sustainable Design
Supplementary Planning Document Parking Standards for Residential 
Development 2015
Strategic Housing and Land Availability Assessment – Findings Report (2017)
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2016)
Environmental Character Study (2008)
Housing Site Allocations Consultation Paper (2011)
Site Allocations Policies Document: Other Sites Consultation Paper (2013)

9 Planning considerations

Principle of Development

9.1 The principle of residential development on this site has been established by 
the grant of planning permission for a dementia care home, nursing home and 
assisted living extra care units under 14/00967/FUL.

9.2 The provision of conventional new housing rather than institutional 
accommodation permitted under 14/00967/FUL is favoured as this would 
make a much larger contribution towards meeting the borough’s local housing 
needs. The Council’s Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 2016 
identifies the objectively assessed need for the Council between 2015-2035 
as 8,352 or 418 new dwellings per annum.

Layout, Design and Scale.

9.3 The layout, scale and massing of the proposed development has been subject 
to considerable pre-application discussions and has been further negotiated 
on and revised since the application was submitted. This has resulted in the 
fourth floor of Block B as originally submitted being entirely removed and the 
resulting 3 storey Blocks A, B and C nearest to Ewell By-pass boundary would 
be between 0.8m and 2.4m lower than the previously approved care home 
development.

Page 72

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

9.4 It is considered that the apartment blocks as now amended with a 3 storey 
central Block B stepping down on either side in height and scale with the use 
of roof dormers in Blocks A and C provides an appropriate transition to the 
adjacent traditional houses in Phase 1 and to the visually sensitive ‘corner’ of 
the site nearest the roundabout.  It is of a scale and massing that is acceptable 
within the site’s context and represents a substantial improvement on the 
overall size, bulk and massing of the extant planning permission for the care 
home. 

9.5 Two terraces of 2 bed houses as originally submitted next to the apartment 
blocks have also been substituted with two further small blocks of 3 storey 
apartments (Blocks D and E). It is considered that the proposed development 
is of a scale, design and layout that is appropriate for the site. 

9.6 The layout and alignment of units near to the Reigate Road frontage and 
estate access road have also been amended since submission to address 
concerns about vehicular access and manoeuvring and there have been other 
changes including enlarged landscaping around the site periphery and 
revisions to the communal amenity space, refuse storage and cycle storage.  

9.7 The proposed layout has a ‘loop road’ and parking for the apartments along 
the northern boundary next to the Ewell By-pass and the junction with Reigate 
Road. This enables the communal amenity space for the apartments to be 
provided around and between the blocks and to provide some separation from 
the noisy highway boundary. 

9.8 The proposed houses are of similar design to those recently constructed in 
Phase 1 and would comprise two storeys with pitched roofs and modest 
architectural details. Each dwelling would have a minimum 10m rear garden 
depth to comply with Policy DM12. It is considered that with the use of 
traditional materials the proposed houses would be in keeping with the 
surroundings in terms of form and scale.

9.9 The density of 57 dwellings per hectare (dph) exceeds the general guidance 
of a maximum 40 (dph) set out in Policy DM11. It is however, considered that 
the applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that the exceptional circumstances 
relating to sustainability and townscape are met through this proposal. It is 
accepted that the design and appearance of the dwellings and the layout 
including landscaping would be to a high standard and any reduction in density 
would result in more pressure on other sites to deliver the housing numbers 
required in the borough and would also result in much needed affordable 
housing being further reduced because of the lower level of viability.  

9.10 Each of the dwellings would comply with the DCLG Technical housing 
standards – nationally prescribed space standard as referred to under Policy 
DM12. 

Page 73

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

Visual Impact

9.11 The reduced scale of the apartment blocks as negotiated since submission 
together with the enhanced boundary landscaping would ensure that there 
would be no harmful visual impact arising from the development as seen from 
the Ewell By-pass. Similarly, the 2 storey scale of houses together with the 
additional landscaping buffer along Reigate Road would minimise any visual 
impact.   

9.12 The development would be closest to the recently occupied dwellings along 
and off Roman Way to the south and Collingridge Way/Clarence Place to the 
east. It is considered that the scheme as proposed would be more visually 
compatible with its surroundings in terms of scale and appearance than the 
previously permitted care home development.  

Residential Amenity

9.13 The nearest dwellings immediately to the east of the application site mainly 
have flank elevations along this boundary and would all exceed the minimum 
separation of 21m between habitable windows considered necessary to 
safeguard privacy and avoid overlooking. The dwelling closest to Block C 
which would have a kitchen/dining room window facing eastwards would not 
be overlooked because it only has secondary windows on the flank elevation 
with the closest window an obscure glazed toilet window. 

9.14 The houses and apartment building along the Reigate Road frontage are set 
in some 17m-20m from the site boundary and are separated from those 
dwellings on Reigate Road by a substantial landscape buffer and Reigate 
Road itself.

9.15 It is accordingly concluded that the proposed development complies with 
Policy DM10 in respect of its impact on residential amenity.  

Parking and Access

9.16 In accordance with Policy DM35, a Transport Assessment has been submitted 
which assesses the impact of the proposed development on the transport 
network. This concluded that the trip generation and traffic modelling analysis 
show the increases in traffic arising from the latest development mix are 
modest equating to only approximately one additional vehicle movement every 
two minutes. There would be no significant impact on the local highway 
network over and above that considered acceptable by the Highway Authority 
in connection with planning permission 15/00098/FUL. This view is accepted 
by Surrey County Council, as Highway Authority.

Page 74

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

9.17 The carriageways are 4.8m wide with a single footpath and are designed to 
reduce the likelihood of on-street parking and to minimise the area of hard 
surfacing across the site.   The County Highways Authority has no objection 
to the proposal subject to the imposition of highway conditions regarding the 
provision of the vehicular access, vehicular and cycle parking and sight-lines 
together with S106 contributions for off-site infrastructure improvements. The 
applicant has confirmed that the roads and footpaths would not be offered for 
adoption and it is accordingly proposed that the maintenance of the estate be 
included within the S106 Heads of Terms. 

9.18 The proposed development complies with the Council’s Parking Standards for 
Residential Development, December 2015 with each apartment having a 
parking space and the 2 and 3 bed houses each having 2 car parking spaces 
some of which would be in attached garages. 

9.19 Policy DM36 requires developments to prioritise the access needs of 
pedestrians and cyclists in the design of new developments. The proposed 
development has shared surfaces and designated footpaths to protect and 
enhance pedestrian and cycle access routes within and through the site.  Off-
site improvement works such as the Toucan crossing on Reigate Road were 
delivered through the Phase 1 development and there is connectivity east 
through Phase 1 for pedestrians and cyclists. 

9.20 In terms of cycle storage provision is made for each apartment to have 1 cycle 
space within either a separate store near the northern corner to the site or 
within the apartment buildings. Cycle storage for houses is either provided in 
garages or a lockage shed. 

Housing Mix

9.21 The proposed housing mix comprises 18 x one bedroom apartments, 47 x two 
bedroom flats or houses and 23 x three bed houses representing 26% against 
the policy requirement of 25% set out in Policy DM22. The housing mix is 
therefore policy compliant and is considered appropriate to meet identified 
local housing needs. 

Affordable Housing 

9.22 As set out in the Strategic Housing Manager’s comments above the applicants 
have submitted a viability assessment that seeks to demonstrate that it is not 
viable to deliver the required affordable housing contribution of 35 units (40%) 
on an 88 unit scheme development. An independent consultant has reviewed 
the viability submission on the Council’s behalf and agrees that the scheme 
would not be able to support a policy compliant affordable housing 
contribution.   

9.23 The scheme is able to deliver some affordable housing on site. The applicants’ 
initially proposed 29 shared ownership (part-buy, part-rent) homes on site with 
a 50% equity share being sold in each of the homes on site. This equates to 
an affordable housing contribution of 33% affordable housing against a policy 
requirement of 40%.

Page 75

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

9.24  In consultation with the Head of Housing and Community, it was agreed that 
the proposal to deliver all homes as shared ownership tenure would not meet 
priority housing needs and was therefore unacceptable. As an alternative, the 
applicants have therefore proposed that they deliver 11 homes for affordable 
rent and 7 for shared ownership. Representing an affordable housing 
contribution of 20%, the homes would be provided as follows: 3 rented 1B2p 
flats, 6 rented 2B4p flats, 2 rented 3B5p houses, 2 shared ownership 1B2p 
flats, 3 shared ownership 2B4p flats, 2 shared ownership 3B5p houses.

9.25 The Head of Housing and Community supports the affordable housing offer as 
now presented with a mix of rented and shared ownership units but, as is usual 
when there is an issue of viability raised by the applicant, it is proposed that 
there should be a review mechanism in the S106 Heads of Terms requiring 
the developer to reach slab level of construction on 10 units within two years 
of planning permission having been granted. If not a (viability) review process 
will be triggered to ensure that the permission is not ‘land banked’ in order to 
avoid a full affordable housing contribution. It is relevant to note that the extant 
care home permission provided no contribution towards affordable housing or 
meeting local housing need.

Landscaping

9.26 An Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement has been 
submitted in support of this application. Four trees are proposed for removal 
as part of the proposals and suitable replacements will be planted as part of a 
comprehensive landscaping scheme that is proposed for the site. The 
landscaping scheme would enhance the existing landscaped boundaries at 
the site with a buffer of between 3.0m to 5.0m along the northern and western 
boundary of the site along the Ewell By-pass and Reigate Road. In addition 
there would be communal softly landscaped amenity space and planting within 
the private curtilages. 

9.27 The Borough Tree Officer has no objections to the proposed landscaping 
details as submitted.
Biodiversity

9.28 The applicant has undertaken an Ecological Appraisal for the site, which 
concludes that the site has potential for nesting birds, a low risk for reptile 
presence and fox earths. Mitigation measures have been proposed to manage 
any potential impacts and recommendations are made in an Ecological 
Enhancements Plan for improving the site’s ecological value through 
measures such as built-in provision for bat roost boxes and bird nest boxes 
within the fabric of the buildings and a small pond in the northern corner of the 
site. The detailed landscape plan also incorporates native planting of known 
benefit to wildlife throughout the site. 

9.29 It is considered that subject to suitable planning conditions the proposed 
development would comply with Policy DM4. 

Flood Risk and Drainage

Page 76

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

9.30 The development site area exceeds 1ha and therefore a development specific 
flood risk assessment was required in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework. An outline Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has accordingly 
been submitted in support of this planning application. The report sets out that 
the site is located within Flood Zone 1, an area with the lowest risk of fluvial 
flooding.

9.31 Surrey CC as Lead Flood Authority has reviewed the surface water drainage 
strategy for the proposed development and assessed it against the 
requirements under NPPF, its accompanying PPG and Technical Standards. 
It is satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the requirements set 
out in the aforementioned documents and can recommend planning 
permission is granted subject to suitably worded conditions to ensure that the 
SuDS Scheme is properly implemented and maintained throughout the lifetime 
of the development and these have been attached.

Sustainability

9.32 Policy CS6 requires development to reduce or have a neutral impact on 
pollution and climate change. It also requires proposals to demonstrate how 
sustainable design and construction can be incorporated to improve energy 
efficiency. Policy DM12 requires new developments to comply with Part G of 
Building Regulations for water efficiency.

9.33 An Energy and Sustainability Statement and full Sample SAP Calculations 
have been submitted in support of this application. The documentation 
demonstrates that the development would significantly reduce the buildings’ 
carbon dioxide emissions when compared to the baseline target, through a 
combination of passive measures and improvements to the building fabric 
design. The development would also meet Part G requirements for water 
efficiency. It is accordingly concluded that the proposed development would 
comply with Policy CS6 and Policy DM12.

Contamination

9.34 The site is located over a principal aquifer and for that reason the Environment 
Agency has been consulted. It has proposed a number of precautionary 
planning conditions to manage the risks associated with potential 
contaminants affecting groundwater and these have been incorporated in 
proposed planning conditions recommended by the Borough Contaminated 
Land Officer in order to comply with the requirements of Policy DM17.  
Noise

9.35 An Environmental Noise Assessment has been submitted in support of this 
application. An Acoustic Assessment has been undertaken to determine the 
impact of existing environmental noise arising from the site’s proximity to Ewell 
By-pass and Reigate Road.

Page 77

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

9.36 The proposed development has been designed to respond to the local noise 
emitters. The car parking for the apartments has been located along the 
sensitive boundary of the Ewell By-pass to allow the apartment buildings to be 
set into the site, away from noise sources, with the apartments’ amenity space 
mainly to the south side and between the buildings to protect these spaces.

9.37 The Acoustic Assessment confirms that the majority of gardens and amenity 
space complies with World Health Organisation guidance.  The Borough 
Environmental Health Officer did raise concerns about the impact of noise on 
some of the dwellings nearest to the Reigate Road boundary and as a result 
of this an extended 3.0m high acoustic fence has been proposed which would 
bring the noise levels down by some 4-6 dB (A). The fence would be largely 
screened from Reigate Road by existing and enhanced landscaping and 
would appear lower because of the fall in ground levels. The Borough 
Environmental Health Officer has confirmed that the revised layout proposal 
is acceptable subject to a condition requiring a scheme to be submitted with 
mitigation measures to ensure the internal noise levels in the living rooms and 
bedrooms of the proposed development are within the BS8233:2014 indoor 
ambient noise guidelines.  

Refuse

9.38 Satisfactory provision is made for refuse storage within dedicated bin store 
areas next to the apartment car parking area or within the apartment buildings 
themselves. Each house would have access to bin storage within the garden 
curtilage.  

Community Infrastructure Levy

9.39 The scheme is CIL liable.

Section 106 Agreement

9.40 The applicant has confirmed a willingness to enter into a legal agreement to 
secure the affordable housing in perpetuity and specific infrastructure 
contributions to ensure that the development is acceptable in planning terms. 
Heads of Terms have been agreed and it is expected that a signed S106 
Agreement will be completed shortly after Committee. 

9.41 The Heads of Terms agreed by the applicant include the following: 

 Detailed arrangements for maintenance of the estate including roads, 
footpaths, open space, and landscaping within an Estate Management 
Plan. 

 Provision of 18 on-site affordable units comprising 11 homes for affordable 
rent and 7 for shared ownership in accordance with an Affordable Housing 
Plan.

 Transport measures covering: A contribution of £5,000 towards 
accessibility improvements to the bus stop in Reigate Road at the end of 
Mongers Lane serving the 470 bus route (Epsom- Sutton) consisting of 
raised kerbs for 9.0m.

Page 78

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

10 Conclusion

10.1 The application proposal meets planning policy objectives and in particular 
makes an important contribution to meeting the Borough’s housing needs. It 
successfully integrates a further phase of residential development into the 
existing Phase 1 housing layout and should result in the creation of a single 
residential community with no harmful impact on the residential amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers.  

10.2 In view of the above, it is recommended that planning permission is granted 
subject to the signing of a legal agreement.  

11 Recommendation

Part A

11.1 Subject to a legal agreement being completed and signed to secure the 
following heads of terms:
(a) Transport measures covering: A contribution of £5,000 towards 

accessibility improvements to the bus stop in Reigate Road at the 
end of Mongers Lane serving the 470 bus route (Epsom- Sutton) 
consisting of raised kerbs for 9.0m.

(b) The provision of 18 on-site affordable units comprising 11 homes 
for affordable rent and 7 for shared ownership in accordance with 
an Affordable Housing Plan. The applicants will be required to reach 
slab level of construction on 10 units within two years of planning 
permission having been granted, if not a (viability) review process 
will be triggered.

(c) Detailed arrangements for maintenance of the estate including 
roads, footpaths, open space, and landscaping within an Estate 
Management Plan.

11.2 The Committee authorise the Head of Place Development to grant 
planning permission subject to the following conditions

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and documents: 100 Rev T, 120 Rev 
H, 121 Rev G, 122 Rev H, 124 Rev A, 140 Rev A, 109 Rev G, 110 Rev G, 
112 Rev F, 113 Rev F, 114 Rev E, 115 Rev D, 116 Rev F, HILL21195-11C.

Page 79

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development 
is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).  

(3) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of the 
external materials to be used for the development shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy 
CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(4) All planting, seeding or turfing approved shall be carried out in the first 
planting and seeding season following the occupation of the 
development or the completion of the development, whichever is the 
sooner. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years after 
planting, are removed, die or become seriously damaged or diseased in 
the opinion of the local planning authority , shall be replaced in the next 
available planting season with others of similar size, species and 
number, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. 

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an 
appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual amenities of 
the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) 
and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 
2015.

(5) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), planning permission shall be required in respect of 
development falling within Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, C, D, E and 
F of that Order.

Reason: To ensure that development within the permitted Classes in 
question is not carried out in such a way as to prejudice the appearance 
of the proposed development or the amenities of future occupants of the 
development or the occupiers of adjoining property in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM10 and DM12 of 
the Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and 
until both the proposed vehicular / pedestrian accesses to Roman Way 
and 15m metres of the new access roads have been constructed and 
provided, with the access provided with visibility zones in accordance 
with the approved plans and thereafter the access visibility zones shall 
be kept permanently clear of any obstruction over 0.6m high.

Page 80

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance 
with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM35 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(7) The Units 20, 21, 34, 35, 36, 37, and 38 shown on Drawing No 100 Rev T 
hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the 
proposed dropped crossings to Roman Way have been constructed and 
provided with visibility zones in accordance with the approved plans and 
thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept permanently clear of any 
obstruction measured from 0.6m above the road surface.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance 
with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM35 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(8) No units hereby approved shall be first occupied unless and until space 
has been laid out for such units within the site in accordance with the 
approved plans for vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that 
they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking 
/ turning areas shall be retained and maintained for their designated 
purposes.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance 
with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM35 and 
DM37 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(9) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport 
Management Plan, to
include details of :
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
(f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation
(g) vehicle routing
(h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
(i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a 
commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused
(j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the 
hours of 8.00 and 9.15 am nor shall the contractor permit any HGVs 
associated with the development at the site to be laid up, waiting, in 
adjoining residential roads during these times

Page 81

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

(k) on-site turning for construction vehicles has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction 
of the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance 
with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM35 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(10) (a) Prior to the commencement of the development a Travel Plan shall be 
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority in 
accordance with the sustainable development aims and objectives of the 
National Planning Policy Framework, Surrey County Council’s “Travel 
Plans Good Practice Guide”, and in general accordance with the 'Heads 
of Travel Plan' document produced by Create Consulting Engineers Ltd.
(b) And then the approved Travel Plan shall be implemented on 
occupation of the development, and shall thereafter maintain and 
develop the Travel Plan to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To encourage travel by means other than private motor vehicles 
in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy 
DM36 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(11) The residential unit hereby approved shall not be occupied until it has 
achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 110 litres per 
person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes 
efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(12) Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning 
permission (or such other date or stage in development as may be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) and in accordance 
with current best practice guidance, the following components of a 
scheme to deal with any ground contamination and ground gas 
(including volatile hydrocarbons) related risks shall each be submitted 
to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority: 

1) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 

• all previous and current uses;

• potential contaminants associated with those uses;

• a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways 
and receptors; and

• potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination.  

Page 82

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for 
a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, 
including those off site.

3) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment 
referred to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and 
remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken.

4) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected 
in order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation 
strategy in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements for 
longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and 
arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these 
components require the express consent of the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with 
Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

(13) If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found 
to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out 
until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from 
the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how 
this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.  The remediation 
strategy shall be implemented as approved, verified and reported to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with 
Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

(14) Prior to occupation of the development, a verification report 
demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved 
remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority.  
The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out 
in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that 
the site remediation criteria have been met.  It shall also include any plan 
(a "long-term monitoring and maintenance plan") for longer-term 
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for 

Page 83

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

contingency action, as identified in the verification plan, if appropriate, 
and for the reporting of this to the local planning authority.  Any long-
term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as 
approved.  

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with 
Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

(15) Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall 
not be permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where 
it has been demonstrated via a risk assessment carried out in 
accordance with the Environment Agency’s guidance 'Piling into 
Contaminated Sites' that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to 
groundwater.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with 
Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

(16) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the detailed 
design of the surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the planning authority. Those details shall 
include:

a) A design that satisfies the SuDS Hierarchy and follows the principles 
set out in the approved drainage strategy ‘Surface Water Strategy, 
Management and Maintenance Report’

b) Detailed drawings showing drainage layout, long or cross sections of 
each drainage element, pipe sizes and invert and cover levels.

c) Appropriate calculations to the elements above showing how the 
national SuDS standards have been met (if different from approved 
strategy).

d) Details of outline construction phasing and how surface water and any 
associated pollution risk will be dealt with during the construction of the 
development, and how any on site drainage systems will be protected 
and maintained

Page 84

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

Reason: To prevent an increased risk of flooding and to prevent pollution 
of the water environment in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom 
and Ewell Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM19 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(17) Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report 
carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the 
Sustainable Urban Drainage System has been constructed as per the 
agreed scheme.

Reason: To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System is designed to the 
technical standards in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and 
Ewell Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM19 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(18) No development shall take place until a scheme for protecting the 
proposed dwelling(s) from noise from traffic on the adjacent road(s) has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall specifically demonstrate the resulting 
internal noise levels in the living rooms and bedrooms of the proposed 
development are within the BS8233:2014 indoor ambient noise 
guidelines using a range of representative properties. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before any 
permitted dwelling is occupied unless an alternative period is first 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure the occupiers of the development are not unduly 
affected by noise disturbance in accordance with Policy DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(19) No development shall take place until a scheme to enhance the 
biodiversity interest of the site has been submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented 
in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority and thereafter maintained.

Reason: To enhance biodiversity and nature habitats in accordance with 
Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM4 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(20) No development shall take place until details of the bin and cycle stores 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The approved details shall be implemented such that prior to 
the first occupation of each unit, it shall be provided with its’ bin and 
cycle stores and thereafter maintained for the duration of the 
development.

Reason: In the interests of residential and visual amenity in accordance 
with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 and DM12 
of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Page 85

AGENDA ITEM 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

(21) No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence on 
site until the protective fencing and other protection measures as shown 
on Drawing Number HILL21195-03B (Tree Protection Plan) and as set out 
in the Arboricultural Method Statement ref HILL21195aia-amsB have 
been installed. At all times until the completion of the development, such 
fencing and protection measures shall be retained as approved. Within 
all fenced areas, soil levels shall remain unaltered and the land kept free 
of vehicles, plant, materials and debris.

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the 
interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy 
CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015. 

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the 
requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012.

(2) The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the 
highway works required by the above condition(s), the County Highway 
Authority may require necessary accommodation works to street lights, 
road signs, road markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street 
trees, highway verges, highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and 
any other street furniture/equipment.

(3) The road layout shown on the application drawings does not conform 
with Surrey Design and is not eligible for adoption.

(4) When access is required to be ‘completed’ before any other operations, 
the Highway Authority may agree that surface course material and in 
some cases edge restraint may be deferred until construction of the 
development is complete, provided all reasonable care is taken to 
protect public safety.

(5) The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to 
carry out any works on the highway. The applicant is advised that prior 
approval must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works 
are carried out on any footway, footpath,carriageway, or verge to form a 
vehicle crossover to install dropped kerbs.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-
licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs

(6) A pedestrian inter-visibility splay of 2m by 2m shall be provided on each 
side of the access, the depth measured from the back of the footway and 
the widths outwards from the edges of the access. No fence, wall or other 
obstruction to visibility between 0.6m and 2m in height above ground 
level shall be erected within the area of such splays.

Page 86

AGENDA ITEM 6

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs


PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

(7) The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to 
obstruct the public highway by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding or 
any other device or apparatus for which a licence must be sought from 
the Highway Authority Local Highways Service.

(8) The developer is advised that a standard fee may be charged for input 
to, and future monitoring of, any Travel Plan.

(9) Any unilateral undertaking shall be in accordance with Surrey County 
Council’s standard format.

(10) The developer would be expected to instruct an independent 
transportation data collection company to undertake the monitoring 
survey. This survey should conform to a TRICS Multi-Modal Survey 
format consistent with the UK Standard for Measuring Travel Plan 
Impacts as approved by the Highway Authority. To ensure that the 
survey represents typical travel patterns, the organisation taking 
ownership of the travel plan will need to agree to being surveyed only 
within a specified annual quarter period but with no further notice of the 
precise survey dates. The Developer would be expected to fund the 
survey validation and data entry costs.

(11) The water efficiency standard required under condition 11 has been 
adopted by the local planning authority through the Development 
Management Policies 2015. This standard is the ‘optional requirement’ 
detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved Document (AD  
Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A paragraph A1.

The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through 
either:

(a) using the ‘fittings approach’ where water fittings are installed as per 
the table at 2.1 in the AD or

(b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the AD 
Part G Appendix A.

(12) This form of development is considered liable for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new 
developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or more 
of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new dwelling, 
even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a standardised, 
non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per square metre, and are 
charged on the net additional floorspace generated by a development.

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course.

More information and the charging schedule are available online

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-
72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published

Page 87

AGENDA ITEM 6

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published


PLANNING COMMITTEE 17/00429/FUL
5 OCTOBER 2017

(13) Works related to the construction of the development hereby permitted, 
including works of demolition or preparation prior to building operations 
shall not take place other than between the hours of 08.00 to 18.00 hours 
Mondays to Fridays; 08.00 to 13.00 hours Saturdays; with no work on 
Saturday afternoons (after 13.00 hours), Sundays, Bank Holidays or 
Public Holidays.

Part B

11.3 In the event that the section 106 Agreement referred to in Part A is not 
completed by 09 November 2017 the Head of Place Development be 
authorised to refuse the application for the following reason:

In the absence of a completed legal obligation under section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the applicant has
failed to comply with CS9 (Affordable Housing) and CS12 (Developer
Contributions) of the 2007 Core Strategy in relation to the provision of 
affordable housing units, a commuted sum towards transport measures 
and estate maintenance arrangements. 

Page 88

AGENDA ITEM 6



17/00429/FUL
Former Nescot Agricultural Land, Reigate Rd, Ewell

I Scale: 1:2124

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Page 89

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 OCTOBER 2017

SITE VISITS

Report of the: Head of Place Development
Contact:  Mark Berry
Annexes/Appendices (attached): None
Other available papers (not attached): None

REPORT SUMMARY 

To identify planning applications which Members of the Committee consider 
should be the subject of a Member site visit.

RECOMMENDATION:

Members are asked to put forward any planning 
applications which it is considered warrant Members 
visiting the site before a decision is made.

Notes

1 Implications for Community Strategy and Council’s Key Priorities

1.1 This report accords with the functions and objectives of Development 
Management.

2 Details

2.1 The Committee is asked to note that planning applications previously 
agreed as the subject of Member site visits that have been withdrawn or 
recommended for refusal under delegated authority are therefore removed 
from the list.

2.2 The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to add to the list of 
applications to be subject to a site visit (at the appropriate time).
 5 Cox Lane, West Ewell KT19 9LR – 17/00121/FUL
 Cedar Lodge, Headley Road, Epsom KT18 6BH – 17/00441/FUL
 New development on NESCOT agricultural lane, Reigate Road, Epsom 

KT17 3DS – 17/00429/FUL
 Development at Upper High Street, Epsom KT17 4QS – 17/00001/FUL

2.3 The Committee is asked to note that a site visit should only be requested 
for planning applications that meet at least one of the following criteria:

2.3.1 If the whole of the site cannot be seen from the road
2.3.2 If the application is large and/or complex

2.4 The Committee is reminded that they will need to give their reason for 
requesting a site visit at the Planning Committee Meeting.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL
Page 91

AGENDA ITEM 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Planning Application 17/00547/REM - Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom KT18 5AZF
	Ashley House, Ashley Road Site location plan

	4 Planning Application 17/00548/LBA - Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom,  KT18 5AZF
	Ashley House, Ashley Road Site location plan

	5 Planning Application 16/01900/CAT - 9 Lynwood Road, Epsom KT17 4LF
	9 Lynwood Road - Annexe 1
	9 Lynwood Road - Annexe 2
	9 Lynwood Road - Annexe 3
	9 Lynwood Road - Annexe 4
	9 Lynwood Road - Annexe 5

	6 Planning Application 17/00429/FUL - New Development on NESCOT agricultural Land, Reigate Road, KT17 3DS
	new development on NESCOT agricultural land site location plan

	7 Site Visits

